
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 29 Ionawr 2021

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Y Cabinet Dros Faterion Rhieni Corfforaethol o bell trwy Microsoft 
Teams ar Dydd Iau, 4 Chwefror 2021 am 14:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 8
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 26/11/20

4. Diweddariad Cynllun Gwella Cyfiawnder Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr 

9 - 58

5. Adroddiad y Gwasanaeth Adolygu Annibynnol (GAA) 59 - 96

6. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Nodyn: Sylwch: Yn sgil yr angen i gadw pellter cymdeithasol, ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei 
gynnal yn ei leoliad arferol. Yn hytrach, bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion 
yn mynychu o bell. Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio i’w ddarlledu ar wefan y Cyngor cyn gynted 
ag sy'n ymarferol ar ôl y cyfarfod. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â 
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148.

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
NA Burnett
N Clarke
HJ David
J Gebbie
T Giffard

CA Green
RM James
D Patel
RL Penhale-Thomas
JC Radcliffe

CE Smith
DBF White
HM Williams
RE Young



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI 
CORFFORAETHOL A GYNHALIWYD YN O BELL TRWY SKYPE FOR BUSINESS DYDD IAU, 
26 TACHWEDD 2020, AM 14:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd  – Cadeirydd 

NA Burnett N Clarke HJ David DK Edwards
J Gebbie T Giffard CA Green RM James
D Patel CE Smith HM Williams RE Young

Swyddogion:

Nicola Echanis Pennaeth Addysg a Chymorth Cynnar
Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Laura Kinsey Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant
Claire Marchant Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau
Mark Shephard Prif Weithredwr

213. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim.

214. DERBYN Y COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD:                    I dderbyn Cofnodion cyfarfod Pwyllgor y Cabinet 
Rhianta Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd ar 4 Awst 2020, fel 
cofnod cywir a manwl gywir.

215. CYMORTH I BLANT BREGUS YN YSTOD COVID 19

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant 
adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd rhoi trosolwg i Aelodau o'r gefnogaeth a'r cynllunio parhaus 
ar gyfer ein plant mwyaf bregus yn ystod Covid-19.

Dechreuodd ei hadroddiad drwy dalu teyrnged i'r plant bregus a'u teuluoedd ym 
Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr am y ffordd maent wedi ymateb yn gadarnhaol 
mewn cyfnod sydd hyd heddiw yn hynod ddwys a thrallodus ar brydiau a blwyddyn 
anodd iddynt yn sgil y pandemig.

Teimlodd fod yr adroddiad yn adlewyrchu asesiad cynhwysfawr o sut weithiodd yr 
Awdurdod fel 'Un Cyngor' pan addasodd yn gyflym iawn i fygythiad y feirws fis Mawrth 
diwethaf. Yn unol â chanllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru, parhaodd y Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a'i bartneriaid i ddiogelu'r mwyaf bregus a'u teuluoedd, drwy ddulliau 
digidol newydd yn bennaf, gan nad oedd cyswllt wyneb yn wyneb yn bosibl yn y rhan 
fwyaf o achosion yn sgil Covid-19.

Er bod gofyn i'r rhan fwyaf o staff sy'n cefnogi cleientiaid i weithio gartref fel y mwyafrif o 
staff arall y Cyngor, parhaodd y tîm MASH i weithredu gyda thîm llai o'r swyddfa yn 
Ravens Court, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Ym mharagraff 3.3 yr adroddiad, ar ffurf tabl, ceir data ar weithgareddau Gofal 
Cymdeithasol Plant yn ystod y cyfnod rhwng mis Ebrill a mis Medi 2020. Mae'r data a 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

ddengys yn y rhan hon o'r adroddiad yn rhoi darlun cadarnhaol o ran y lefelau uchel o 
berfformiad a gafodd eu cynnal yn ystod y cyfnod clo, o ran asesiadau, ymweliadau â 
phlant (o bell yn bennaf) a chynnal Cynadleddau Gwarchod Plant o fewn yr amserlenni 
statudol gofynnol.

Fel y cyfeirir ato uchod, cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Llesiant bod y tîm MASH ynghyd â staff ymholiadau cyffredinol sy'n ateb 
ymholiadau a galwadau yn parhau i weithio yn y swyddfa. Cafwyd cyfarfodydd o bell 
gyda phlant a'u teuluoedd etc., ac er eu bod yn cyflawni eu diben, roeddynt yn fwy heriol 
na rhyngweithiadau wyneb yn wyneb fel y byddai'n digwydd dan amgylchiadau arferol 
cyn Covid.

Mae paragraff 3.6 yr adroddiad yn amlinellu'r mathau o gefnogaeth sydd mewn lle i 
ddysgwyr bregus drwy Dimau Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd a Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol Plant, er gwybodaeth Aelodau.

Atodwyd fersiwn ddiweddaraf y Cynllun Gwasanaeth Diogelu lawn i Atodiad 1 yr 
adroddiad. 

Yng ngoleuni Cyhoeddiad Llywodraeth Cymru y byddai "Cyfnod Atal Byr" neu "Atal Byr" 
yn dod i rym rhwng 6pm, dydd Gwener 23 Hydref 2020 hyd at ddydd Llun 9 Tachwedd 
2020, gwnaed y penderfyniad i adolygu a diweddaru Cynllun y Gwasanaethau Plant yn 
unol â'r Canllawiau a oedd wedi'u cyhoeddi. Gweithredwyd ychwanegiad yn amlinellu 
newidiadau dros dro yn y dulliau gweithio ar gyfer y cyfnod penodol hwn a gellir dod o 
hyd iddo fel Atodiad (i'r adroddiad). 

Yn ogystal â'r gwasanaethau/swyddogaethau statudol yr ymdrinnir â nhw yn y Cynllun 
Gwasanaeth, ymatebodd y Cyngor i'r angen i ddarparu cymorth i'n plant a phobl ifanc 
mwyaf bregus yn ystod gwyliau'r ysgol a sefydlwyd darpariaeth unigryw i gyflawni hyn.

Llwyddodd y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant i wneud defnydd 
da o gyllid Llywodraeth Cymru i ddarparu gweithgareddau a chymorth yn ystod yr haf, 
eglurodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant. 
Darparwyd 20 diwrnod o weithgareddau, gan gefnogi 39 o bobl ifanc a oedd wedi'u 
cofrestru neu eu dosbarthu'n fregus, a gyda 259 sesiwn wedi'u cyflwyno i bobl ifanc dros 
y cyfnod o bedair wythnos.

Yn ogystal, dywedodd y cefnogwyd rhaglen i bobl ifanc sydd ag anghenion ychwanegol 
a fyddai fel arfer wedi manteisio ar y rhaglen seibiant Dyddiau Darganfod yn ystod yr 
haf.

Cymeradwyodd y Cadeirydd yr adroddiad ac roedd yn ymwybodol o'r gwaith achos yr 
oedd Swyddogion wedi bod yn ymgymryd ag o ers dechrau'r cyfnod clo a'r ymholiadau 
ac atgyweiriadau yr oedd Aelodau wedi ymdrin â nhw hefyd, yn enwedig o ran pryderon 
dros ddiffyg cyswllt rhwng asiantaethau cefnogi statudol a LAC. Wedi dweud hynny, 
mae'r adroddiad yn nodi sut gellir tawelu'r pryderon hyn nawr a bod cefnogaeth wedi'i 
chynnal ar gyfer ein mwyaf bregus yn y gymdeithas, er yn wahanol i'r gorffennol, yng 
ngoleuni'r coronafeirws.

Gofynnodd Aelod sut oedd Covid-19 a'i gyfyngiadau wedi effeithio ar weithgareddau 
bywyd bob dydd LAC etc., h.y. graddfa'r ymyriadau ar eu trefn arferol fel rhan o fywyd 
bob dydd.

Dywedodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant bod cefnogaeth i deuluoedd Maeth a Gofal 
Preswyl wedi parhau yn yr un modd â chyn Covid ac ar wahân i'r cyfyngiadau ymbellhau 
cymdeithasol ac unrhyw ymyriadau i addysg, roedd y drefn arferol yn parhau. Serch 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

hynny, cafwyd rhai cyfyngiadau yr oedd pawb arall yn eu hwynebu hefyd, megis 
ymweliadau â'r deintydd a meddyg teulu lle'r oedd angen gwisgo cyfarpar diogelu 
personol ar gyfer unrhyw driniaeth fewnwthiol.

Ychwanegodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ei bod yn falch o hysbysu'r 
Pwyllgor bod adolygiadau statudol ar gyfer LAC wedi'u cynnal ers diwedd mis Mawrth ac 
o fewn yr amserlenni perthnasol hefyd.      

PENDERFYNWYD:                           Y byddai'r Aelodau yn nodi'r adroddiad.
216. AROLYGIAETH GOFAL CYMRU (CIW - CSSIW GYNT) AROLWG O GARTREFI 

GOFAL PRESWYL PLANT

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant adroddiad, er mwyn ei rannu â 
Phwyllgor y Cabinet, adroddiadau a Chynlluniau Gweithredu cysylltiedig yn dilyn 
arolygon CIW, ynghylch Maple Tree House (mis Medi 2019, mis Chwefror 2020 a mis 
Awst 2020) a Harwood House (mis Gorffennaf 2019).

Drwy beth wybodaeth gefndirol, dywedodd wrth Aelodau mai Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru 
(CIW) sy'n gyfrifol am arolygu pob gwasanaeth gofal a chymorth rheoledig, gan gynnwys 
Cartrefi Plant, yng Nghymru.  Mae arolygiadau yn cynnwys pedwar cam allweddol: 1) 
cynllunio a pharatoi arolygon, 2) ymweld a chynnal yr arolwg, 3) adborth, a 4) adrodd.  
Yn ystod y broses, byddai arolygwyr yn gwneud beirniadaethau ynglŷn â pha mor dda 
mae'r gwasanaeth yn perfformio dan bedair thema graidd: 1) llesiant; 2) gofal a 
chefnogaeth; 3) amgylchedd; a 4) arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth.

Yn achos cartrefi plant, byddai CIW yn gwneud arolygon blynyddol fel rhan o'u rhaglen 
dreigl.  Roedd dau brif fath o arolygon, sef Cyflawn a Chanolbwyntiedig, ac eglurir yr hyn 
sy'n cael ei gynnwys mewn perthynas â phob un o'r rhain ym mharagraff 3.2 yr 
adroddiad.

Yna mae paragraff(au) 4 yr adroddiad yn rhoi crynodeb o ganfyddiadau arolygon CIW o 
bob un o'r safleoedd dan sylw, a'r Adroddiadau Arolygon Cyflawn wedi'u cynnwys fel 
Atodiadau i'r adroddiad eglurhaol.

Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Gofal Plant yr Aelodau at baragraff 4.6 yr adroddiad, 
lle'r oedd y CIW yn cydnabod bod rhai gwelliannau a restrir yma wedi'u cyflawni yn 
Maple Tree House, yn dilyn arolygiad CIW pellach o'r Cartref hwn.

Yna cyfeiriodd at adran yr adroddiad gyda'r pennawd argymhellion a chamau nesaf.

Datblygwyd Cynlluniau Gweithredu i ymateb i'r argymhellion a wnaed gan CIW o ran 
Cartrefi ac mae'r rhain wedi'u cynnwys yn Atodiadau 5 a 6 yr adroddiad. Cafodd y rhain 
eu monitro gan y Rheolwr Grŵp - Tîm Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu, yn ystod 
goruchwyliaeth â'r Rheolwr/Rheolwyr Preswyl a'r Unigolyn Cyfrifol drwy eu hymweliadau 
rheolaidd. Fel y nodir yn yr adroddiad, nid oedd unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn weddill ar 
gyfer Harwood House ac roedd cynllun gweithredu cynhwysfawr a phecyn cymorth yn 
hybu'r newidiadau a'r gwelliannau a oedd yn ofynnol yn Maple Tree House.   

Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant cyn yr ysgrifennwyd yr adroddiad 
gerbron yr Aelodau, y cynhaliwyd arolygiad dirybudd gan CIW yn Maple House a 
dywedodd yr Arolygwr wrth y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol y gwnaethpwyd cynnydd 
enfawr ers y cynhaliwyd yr arolwg gwreiddiol. Ers y cynhaliwyd hwn, gwnaeth y Panel 
Gwella a Gorfodi gwrdd a phenderfynu codi'r cyfyngiadau yr oeddynt wedi'u rhoi mewn 
lle yn flaenorol yn Maple House (oherwydd bod y gwelliannau wedi'u cyflawni). 
Penderfynodd y Panel i beidio â gweithredu ymhellach oherwydd y cyflawnwyd materion 
diffyg cydymffurfio blaenorol. Ers hynny, cyflwynodd yr Arolygwr CIW adroddiad 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

ysgrifenedig, yn dilyn ei arolygiad diweddaraf, yn cydnabod y newidiadau cadarnhaol a 
oedd wedi'u rhoi mewn lle gan gadarnhau bod gwelliannau wedi'u gwneud yn holl 
feysydd y cartref, heb law am nifer fechan o feysydd lle'r oedd gwaith yn mynd rhagddo.

Croesawodd Aelodau y diweddariad hwn a gofynnodd yr Arweinydd a oedd yr holl 
bwyntiau gweithredu wedi'u nodi yn y Cynllun Gweithredu perthnasol bellach wedi'u 
cyflawni.

Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu bod y rhan fwyaf 
o'r rhain wedi'u cadarnhau a'u cwblhau, er bod rhai meysydd yn dal i fod lle'r oedd 
gwaith yn parhau. Ychwanegodd fod y pedwar cartref bellach yn cydymffurfio'n llwyr o 
ran rheoliadau a nodwyd gan y CIW. Rhoddodd sicrwydd i'r Aelodau y byddai'r safonau 
hyn yn cael eu cynnal.

Cyfeiriodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd at baragraff 4.1.3 yr adroddiad, lle amlinellwyd bod 
cynlluniau am gyfleuster newydd ar gyn-safle Ysgol Gynradd Brynmenyn. Gofynnodd a 
yw'r cyfleuster newydd hwn ar y trywydd cywir i'w agor ar y dyddiad targed, a beth fyddai 
buddion y cyfleuster hwn mewn cymhariaeth â'r un blaenorol.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gofal Plant bod caniatâd cynllunio wedi'i gymeradwyo bellach 
ar gyfer y cyfleuster newydd a'i fod ar y trywydd cywir i agor blwyddyn nesaf. 
Ychwanegodd y byddai hwn mewn lleoliad gwell, mwy rhannol-wledig, gyda man awyr 
agored gwell, a fyddai'n cynorthwyo llesiant emosiynol a chorfforol plant. Yn ogystal, 
mae'r adeilad yn fwy na'r cyfleuster presennol yn Maple House a byddai gwely brys 
ychwanegol yno, sy'n golygu y bydd tri gwely, a dim ond dau sydd yn y cyfleuster 
presennol.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod Pwyllgor y Cabinet yn derbyn a chymeradwyo'r 
Cynlluniau Gweithredu wedi'u diweddaru, fel maent wedi'u 
hatodi i'r adroddiad.

217. CYMERADWYO'R DATGANIADAU O FWRIAD AR GYFER GWASANAETHAU GOFAL 
PRESWYL PLANT

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant 
adroddiad a'i ddiben oedd darparu'r datganiadau o fwriad diwygiedig i Aelodau ar gyfer y 
ddarpariaeth gwasanaethau preswyl plant a phobl ifanc gyfredol yng Nghyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Mae'n ofyniad dan gyfansoddiad y Cyngor i 
gyflwyno'r rhain i'r Pwyllgor Rhianta Corfforaethol eu cymeradwyo.

Dywedodd wrth Aelodau bod gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr bedwar 
cartref preswyl i blant ar hyn o bryd sy'n darparu gwasanaethau i blant a phobl ifanc 
rhwng 0-19 oed, sef:-

 Maple Tree House;
 Sunny Bank;
 Bakers Way; a
 Tŷ Harwood

Daeth Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 (RISCA) i rym ar 
2 Ebrill 2018. Diben y Ddeddf oedd adeiladu ar lwyddiant rheoliad yng Nghymru ac 
adlewyrchu byd newidiol gofal cymdeithasol. Mae'n rhoi ansawdd gwasanaethau a 
gwelliant wrth galon y cynllun rheoleiddio ac yn cryfhau diogelwch i'r rheiny sydd ei 
angen. Byddai rheoliad o'r fath yn mynd y tu hwnt i gydymffurfiaeth â lleiafswm y 
safonau, a chanolbwyntio mwy ar ansawdd gwasanaethau a'r effaith maent yn ei chael 
ar y bobl sy'n eu derbyn.

Page 6



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu, yn nhymor yr 
hydref 2018, y cofrestrwyd holl wasanaethau cymdeithasol y Cyngor i fodloni gofynion y 
ddeddfwriaeth newydd. Mae gan bob darpariaeth gwasanaeth mewnol ddatganiad o 
fwriad ei hun a chafodd y rhain eu hatodi yn Atodiadau 1 - 4 yr adroddiad.

Dywedodd wrth y Pwyllgor mai o ran y safleoedd y'u crybwyllwyd uchod, roedd gan 
Sunnybank a Maple Tree House yr un rheolwr.

Yn unol â'r Rheoliadau, cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a 
Darparu, bod y Datganiadau o Fwriad bellach wedi bod yn destun eu hadolygiad 
blynyddol ac mae'r newidiadau i'r datganiadau wedi'u manylu ym mharagraff 4.4 yr 
adroddiad. Nawr mae'r Datganiadau diwygiedig yn adlewyrchu lefel o gysondeb ar 
draws y 4 Cartref, rhywbeth na chyflawnwyd yn y gorffennol, ychwanegodd.

Cadarnhaodd y Cadeirydd bod yr adroddiad yn amserol iawn ac yn ddarlleniad difyr. 
Ynghyd â'r Datganiadau o Fwriad, rhoddwyd uchelgeisiau ar gyfer ein Cartrefi Gofal yn 
gadarn mewn lle, gyda phersbectif clir bellach o ran anelu am safon uchel yn y 
cyfleusterau hyn mae angen i'r Gyfarwyddiaeth weithio tuag ati.

O ran y Datganiadau o Ddiben diwygiedig, gofynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Llesiant a 
Chenedlaethau'r Dyfodol a oedd y staff yn y Cartrefi Gofal wedi cael gwybod am y rhain, 
yn ogystal ag a oedd unrhyw newidiadau i'w telerau ac amodau o ganlyniad iddynt yn 
cael eu cyflwyno.

Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu bod bob un o'r 
Rheolwyr Preswyl yn y Cartrefi wedi cadarnhau bod unrhyw newidiadau o'r fath wedi'u 
rhoi mewn lle gyda'r staff sy'n gweithio yno. O ran Maple Tree House a'r strwythur staffio 
diwygiedig yno, cafwyd ymgynghoriad â gweithwyr yno ynglŷn â hyn.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd a oedd ein plant a phobl ifanc wedi cyfrannu at y Datganiadau 
o Fwriad diwygiedig er mwyn datblygu gwasanaeth, yn ogystal â chael peth 
gydnabyddiaeth bod 'eu lleisiau yn cael eu clywed.'

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant mai dyma oedd yr achos. Yna 
rhoddodd rai enghreifftiau o sut gyfrannodd plant a phobl ifanc a sut y gwrandawyd 
arnynt gan y gwasanaeth, er budd Aelodau. Ychwanegodd fod eu cyfraniad wedi'i 
gofrestru yn eu cofnodion, a oedd hefyd yn ffurfio rhan o unrhyw adroddiadau i'r CIW.   

PENDERFYNWYD:                       Y byddai Aelodau yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a 
chymeradwyo'r Datganiad o Fwriad ar gyfer pob un o'r 
4 ddarpariaeth gwasanaeth preswyl.

218. DATGANIADAU O FWRIAD DIWYGIEDIG AR GYFER GWASANAETHAU MAETHU 
PLANT

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu adroddiad, er mwyn 
darparu Aelodau â'r Datganiad o Fwriad diwygiedig ar gyfer y Gwasanaeth Maethu yng 
Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Mae'n ofyniad dan Gyfansoddiad y 
Cyngor i gyflwyno'r rhain i'r Pwyllgor Rhianta Corfforaethol eu cymeradwyo.

Eglurodd fod y Gwasanaeth Maethu yn darparu ystod o ofal maeth i blant a phobl ifanc y 
gofalir amdanynt gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Mae'r gwasanaeth 
yn cynnig y mathau o ofal teulu i blant a phobl ifanc o'u genedigaeth i 18 mlwydd oed, fel 
y nodwyd ym mharagraff 3.1 yr adroddiad.

Page 7



PWYLLGOR Y CABINET DROS FATERION RHIENI CORFFORAETHOL - DYDD IAU, 26 TACHWEDD 2020

Daeth darpariaethau perthnasol Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol 
(Cymru) 2016 (RISCA) i rym ar 2 Ebrill 2018.  Diben y Ddeddf oedd adeiladu ar 
lwyddiant rheoliad yng Nghymru ac adlewyrchu byd newidiol gofal cymdeithasol. Mae'n 
rhoi ansawdd gwasanaethau a gwelliant wrth galon y cynllun rheoleiddio ac yn cryfhau 
diogelwch i'r rheiny sydd ei angen. Bydd rheoliad yn mynd y tu hwnt i gydymffurfio â 
lleiafswm y safonau, a chanolbwyntio mwy ar ansawdd gwasanaethau a'r effaith maent 
yn ei chael ar y bobl sy'n eu derbyn.

Daeth Rheoliadau Gwasanaethau Maethu Awdurdodau Lleol (Cymru) 2018 i rym ar 29 
Ebrill 2019 ac mae'n nodi Gofynion yr Awdurdod Lleol i baratoi Datganiad o Fwriad a'i 
gadw dan adolygiad rheolaidd, yn flynyddol.

Yn unol â'r canllawiau i gasglu Datganiad o Fwriad a gafodd eu darparu dan y Ddeddf 
uchod gan Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru (Ebrill 2019), paratôdd Gwasanaeth Maethu Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr ei Ddatganiad o Fwriad ac mae hwn wedi'i gynnwys fel Atodiad 1 i'r 
adroddiad.

Fis Ebrill 2020, cafodd y Datganiad o Fwriad ei adolygiad blynyddol ac mae'r newidiadau 
i'r datganiadau wedi'u manylu ym mharagraff 4.4 yr adroddiad.

Yna rhannodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu rai o'r pwyntiau 
amlwg a nodweddion allweddol y Datganiad o Fwriad Diwygiedig gydag Aelodau.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd a ellir rhoi rhagor o adborth ar effaith Covid-19 ar Ofalwyr 
Maeth, gan fod y rhain yn darparu gofal i'r rhan fwyaf o blant yr oeddem yn eu cefnogi yn 
eu cartrefi eu hunain. Yn ogystal, ychwanegodd a oes angen adlewyrchu unrhyw 
fecanweithiau cefnogi gwahanol a weithredwyd ar gyfer y plant hyn ers i'r pandemig 
ddechrau yn Natganiad o Fwriad y Gwasanaeth Maethu.

Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Gwasanaethau Lleoliadau a Darparu bod y Gofalwyr 
Maeth yn gwneud gwaith anhygoel yn enwedig ers dechrau'r pandemig. 

Maent wedi dangos lefel uchel iawn o wytnwch yn cefnogi eu plant yn ystod y cyfnod 
anoddaf y gellir ei ddychmygu, yn ogystal â pharhau i orfod ymdrin â'u pryderon eraill. 
Ers mis Mawrth diwethaf mae staff Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol wedi bod yn monitro 
sut mae Gofalwyr Maeth a Phlant Maeth yn ymdopi yn wythnosol o leiaf drwy gyswllt 
dros y ffôn neu e-bost, etc. yn bennaf. Yn ogystal, datblygodd yr adran statws coch, 
melyn a gwyrdd, er mwyn categoreiddio'r lefelau gwahanol o gefnogaeth yr oedd eu 
hangen ar y teuluoedd hyn yn ystod yr argyfwng cyfredol, rhag ofn bod angen unrhyw 
ymweliadau cartref brys ar gyfer lleoliadau â blaenoriaeth gan Weithwyr Cymdeithasol, 
ar sail anghenraid.

Ychwanegodd y cyhoeddwyd cylchlythyrau wythnosol i deuluoedd Gofalwyr Maeth, yn 
tynnu sylw at ddiweddariadau a newidiadau i'r ffordd yr oedd gwasanaethau a oedd ar 
gael yn cael eu cyflwyno, yn ogystal â rhoi enghreifftiau iddynt o syniadau am 
weithgareddau y gellid eu gwneud pan oedd teuluoedd yn dioddef o unigedd yn ystod 
cyfnodau clo llawn.   

PENDERFYNWYD:                           Bod Pwyllgor y Cabinet yn nodi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad a chymeradwyo'r Datganiad o Fwriad 
diwygiedig ar gyfer Gwasanaeth Maethu Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr.

219. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16:00

Page 8



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CORPORATE PARENTING COMMITTEE

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY 
SUPPORT

UPDATE ON BRIDGEND YOUTH JUSTICE SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Corporate Parenting Committee on 
progress with implementing the Bridgend Youth Justice Service improvement 
plan which was developed following a Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation 
(HMIP) inspection of Western Bay Youth Justice and Early Intervention Service 
in December 2018.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate 
priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective/objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015: 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to 
make the county borough a great place to do business, for people to 
live, work, study and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused 
on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions for all people in the 
county borough. 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions 
to have active, healthy and independent lives.

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, 
physical, ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively 
and efficiently as possible and support the creation of resources 
throughout the community that can help to deliver the Council’s well-
being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 Bridgend Youth Justice Service (Bridgend YJS) is a statutory multi-agency 
partnership that has a legal duty to co-operate in order to secure appropriate 
local youth justice services. The service is funded from a variety of sources 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



including UK Government, Welsh Government and statutory partners (ie 
Bridgend County Borough Council, South Wales Police, the Probation Service 
and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board).

3.2 Statutory duties to prevent offending are outlined in criminal justice and civil 
legislation. The principle aim of Youth Justice Services in England and Wales 
is to prevent offending and re-offending by young people in accordance with 
the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. Local authorities in Wales 
also have statutory duties to provide preventative services contained in Section 
15 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. Local authorities 
must provide services to:

 encourage children not to commit offences;
 avoid the need for children to be placed in secure accommodation; and
 enable people to live their lives as independently as possible.

3.3 The Western Bay Youth Justice and Early Intervention Service (WBYJEIS) was 
subject to a full joint inspection by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation 
(HMIP) in December 2018, the findings of which were published in March 2019. 
The inspection concluded that the WBYJEIS received an overall rating of 
inadequate. The findings of the HMIP inspection concluded that nine of the 
twelve inspection domains were rated as inadequate, one was adequate, one 
was good and one was outstanding. The inspection report is available online at 
www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk .

3.4 On 19 April 2019, Cabinet agreed to the disaggregation of the WBYJEIS and 
that the new arrangement would be for the Bridgend’s Youth Justice Service to 
sit within the portfolio of an existing group manager within the Education and 
Family Support directorate.

3.5 The service continues to be subject to monitoring by the Youth Justice Board 
(YJB) and significant scrutiny from a variety of sources including UK 
Government and Welsh Government. However, due to the impact of COVID-
19 it is presently unknown when a re-inspection of Bridgend YJS will be 
undertaken. 

4. Current situation/proposal 

4.1 A restructure of Bridgend YJS was concluded in September 2019. This 
restructure led to the service becoming a part of the Integrated Multi-Agency 
Prevention of Complex Cases Teams (IMPACCT) hub working closely with the 
edge of care teams. This move has provided better joint working, sharing of 
skills and resources and reduced duplication of work for children, young people 
and families. The restructure also led to the creation of lead practitioner posts 
which provide the service with the opportunity to deliver robust supervision, 
quality assurance of work and line management of staff. These were areas 
highlighted within the inspection as a cause for concern. The lead practitioner 
posts were recruited to in October 2019, with both lead practitioners in post in 
January 2020.

Page 10

http://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/


4.2 Quality assurance work has commenced within the service. Feedback from this 
has highlighted that there is an improving picture in respect of the quality of 
assessments. However, further work in addressing risk of harm and safety and 
wellbeing has been identified. In response to this, independent training 
approved by the YJB has been commissioned to support staff in this area. In 
addition to assessments, development of need led plans that are timely and 
address issues highlighted within assessments has also been identified as an 
area for improvement. Developing interventions and programmes that reduce 
risks of re-offending are also ongoing areas for the service to enhance. 

4.3 The lead practitioners have begun to implement approaches in response to the 
above. This has included the Bridgend YJS being involved in practice issues 
sessions with other services. In these sessions sharing of skills, knowledge and 
expertise takes place between staff within edge of care teams and the Bridgend 
YJS with particular focus on evidenced based practice. Furthermore, a 
partnership has been built with a local community organisation offering young 
people known to the service the opportunity to engage in a six to eight week 
programme using sport to improve social and emotional skills. Closer links with 
the Fire Service has also been developed leading to opportunities for young 
people to engage in fire cadets. Developing these areas provides the service 
with support that can assist young people in reducing their risks of offending or 
anti-social behaviour, areas that were identified within the inspection report as 
inadequate.

4.4 Bridgend YJS has improved relationships with partners since the restructure in 
2019. This has led to the appointment of a specialist health worker into the 
service. This was an area identified within the inspection as a cause for 
concern. Relationships with the Probation Service are also improving with 
monthly meetings being held to review young people transitioning to adulthood 
and ensuring support needs continue. The Bridgend YJS relationship and joint 
working with children’s social care is also improving with better representation 
at risk management meetings between the two agencies. This ensures that the 
needs of young people and their families are being addressed and the risk of 
duplication is reduced. 

4.5 A self-assessment of the Bridgend YJS was conducted in April 2020. Areas 
identified for improvement have been added to the Improvement Plan attached 
at appendix 1. Areas identified within this plan include the ongoing improvement 
of assessments, support plans, interventions, partnership working and 
evaluation and feedback forms from young people.

4.6 There have been a number of challenges as part of the improvement journey 
for the Bridgend YJS, in particular the impact COVID-19 has had on the pace 
of progress in addressing some of the practice issues. The service, like others, 
had to adapt to restrictions and develop practice and support not commonly 
offered to children, young people and their families. It is positive to report that 
a number of staff within the service adapted to this and supported the authority 
with some of the priorities at that time ie childcare hubs and free school meal 
deliveries. However, COVID-19 has impacted on the lead practitioners’ ability 

Page 11



to affect change in some areas due to remote working, changes in practice, 
staff sickness for example. 

4.7 Attached at appendix 2 is the performance framework report which is 
considered at monthly Youth Justice Service Management Board meetings. 
The Management Board is jointly chaired by the Chief Executive of the Council 
and the Cabinet Member for Communities. Terms of reference for the 
Management Board are attached at appendix 3.

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1     There is no effect on the policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1     There are no equality implications directly arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 Summary on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
assessment is listed below:

Long-term The long term aim of the service is to improve outcomes 
for children, young people and families by reducing first-
time entrants into the youth justice system, reducing re-
offending rates and reducing the use of custody for young 
people.

Prevention The focus of the service is to prevent offending and re-
offending by young people under the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998.

Integration The service is a multi-agency partnership where 
integration is key to good service delivery arrangements.

Collaboration Collaboration will be critical to deliver the inspection
recommendations.

Involvement Participation and engagement arrangements will be
strengthened as part of the new working arrangements.

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications linked to this report.

9. Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Committee:

 notes the contents of the report; and

Page 12



 provides comments/recommendations.

Lindsay Harvey
Corporate Director Education and Family Support

Contact officer: Mark Lewis
Group Manager (Integrated Working and Family Support)

Telephone: (01656) 642679
Email: Mark.Lewis@bridgend.gov.uk 
Postal address: Level 2, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, 

CF33 4WB

Background documents: HM Inspectorate of Probation – an inspection of 
youth offending services in Western Bay

Page 13

mailto:Mark.Lewis@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 16

Appendix 1

Bridgend County Borough Council October 2020
Bridgend Youth Justice Service (YJS) – Improvement Plan

Shown below is the improvement/action plan that has been developed in response to the full joint inspection by HM Inspectorate of Probation. In 
addition, the plan includes operational priorities identified by staff within the Bridgend Youth Justice service and areas for development identified by 
the National Standards Self-Assessment 2019-2020.

All actions and recommendations that have been completed have been removed to ensure focus remains on outstanding actions and identified 
areas for development.  However, these recommendations and activities are archived in a separate document and are available on request.

Service Area Bridgend Youth Justice Service (YJS)  

Head of Service and 
Strategic Lead for Bridgend 
YJS

Nicola Echanis  

Improvement plan

RAG Code Definition

GREEN Action on target

AMBER Action off target

RED Action overdue

P
age 15



Page 2 of 16

HM Inspectorate of Probation inspection report recommendations

Bridgend Youth Justice Service Management Board should:

Recommendation Action Who Target date RAG code Progress Update

3. Develop effective 
oversight of the service’s 
work and effective 
challenge to partners

Agree a robust and meaningful 
performance framework to allow 
the management board to hold 
the service to account including 
staff sickness data.

Bridgend Youth 
Justice Service 
Management 
Board

September 
2019

Green
16.9.20 – It is felt that a 
robust framework is in 
place to allow the 
management board to hold 
the service to account. 
Whilst the performance 
framework will evolve to 
meet emerging needs the 
management board are 
asked to confirm whether 
the framework is fit for 
purpose at this point in 
time.

P
age 16



Page 3 of 16

Bridgend Youth Justice Service Manager should:

Recommendation Action Who Target date RAG code Progress Update

7. Make sure that all staff 
have appropriate 
supervision and 
management oversight.

Complete skills audit of YJS staff 
and board members

Service Managers September 
2019

Red 16.9.20 – A presentation 
outlining the journey of the 
child to be made to the 
Management Board at the 
November meeting.
25.8.20 – Staff audit 
complete and 
training/development plans 
in place. Management 
board members were 
requested to complete a 
skills audit which was 
circulated on 22.6.20 and 
10 were returned.  Based 
on the returned 
submissions a 
training/development plan 
is being put in place for 
board members. 

Staff audit complete and 

P
age 17



Page 4 of 16

training plan in place

Director of Bridgend Children’s Services should:

Recommendation Action Who Target date RAG code Progress Update

Improve the quality of 
assessments and risk 
management processes 

Ensure risk is appropriately 
assessed and schedule risk 
assessment training for all YJS 
staff

Service Managers September 
2019

Green 16.9.20 – Lead 
Practitioners to develop 
guides for assessing risk of 
harm, safety and wellbeing 
and thresholds for 
assessments by end of 
October 2020.

25.8.20. Virtual refresher 
training to be offered to 
relevant staff on 8, 22 and 
29 September 2020.  

Management oversight and 
appropriate challenge in 

P
age 18



Page 5 of 16

place.

Ensure plans developed meet the 
needs of young people and there 
is no drift in respect of support 
offered to children and young 
people who become involved with 
the service

Lead Practitioners March 2021 Green 16.9.20 – Prevention Co-
ordinator has developed a 
review process for bureau 
interventions.  Lead 
Practitioners to review the 
process for statutory 
interventions to ensure 
reviews are incorporated by 
the end of October.  To be 
rolled out to staff in 
November.

25.8.20 - Feedback from 
young people open to the 
service as 31.5.20 is 
included in section 3 of the 
performance framework 
which has been shared with 
the management board. 

To improve the analysis and 
action planning to tackle any 
disproportionality

Lead Practitioners March 2021 Green 16.9.20 – Data around 
gender, ethnicity, offences 
and type of disposal 
received over a three year 
period have been analysed.  
The findings will be 
presented to the 
management board at the 
October meeting

25.8.20 - This work 
continues to be progressed 
as part of the quality 

P
age 19



Page 6 of 16

assurance framework.

Develop an agreed model of 
intervention

Service Managers September 
2019

Red 16.9.20 – This will be an 
ongoing piece of work 
around driving practice, 
improving assessments and 
care planning.    

25.8.20 – Work 
commenced and task and 
finish groups conducted. 
Work has been delivered to 
staff around the integrated 
family support services 
model and use of 
motivational interviewing 
and solution focused brief 
therapy. Further work being 
undertaken around 
developing other 
interventions within the 
service. This will be an 
ongoing process.  

Consideration to be given 
by the management 
board as to whether this 
action can be archived. 

The local authority education services should:

Recommendation Action Who Target date RAG code Progress Update

P
age 20



Page 7 of 16

13. Develop a literacy 
and numeracy strategy 
to support children and 
young people to 
develop these skills to 
improve the chances of 
desistance.

Develop and agree appropriate 
strategies

Service Managers July 2019 Red 16.9.20 – DW to map 
process linking in with the 
Education Engagement 
Team of the Directorate. 
Consultation has 
commenced with aim of 
creating new post within 
Education Engagement 
team and ensure support in 
place for learners open to 
YJS. 

25.8.20 – Work ongoing to 
identify and map the level 
of literacy and numeracy 
support and wider 
education offered to young 
people open to the service.

Additional areas for development (not referred to above) identified by YJS staff at development session on 11 April 2019

Bridgend YJS staff recommend:
Recommendation Actions Who Target date RAG 

code
Progress Update

P
age 21



Page 8 of 16

Develop a more robust 
supervision process and 
increase personal 
development opportunities.

Increase opportunities for 
partnership working as 
identified in the self-
assessment standard 1.  

Schedule a workshop with relevant 
safeguarding and early help (EH) 
colleagues to:

(a) agree relevant training and 
personal development 
opportunities for YJS staff; and

(b) a development day to improve 
interface and service 
awareness between YJS, 
safeguarding and the wider 
early help service. 

Service 
Managers

August 2019 Red 16.9.20 – An online event 
will be held in January with 
members from safeguarding 
teams, YJS, Early Help 
teams to raise awareness of 
roles, responsibilities and 
increase opportunities for 
joint working. 

25.8.20 – Dates that were 
scheduled for April 2020 to 
meet with operational 
children social care 
colleagues and wider teams 
were cancelled due to 
COVID.

These will be re-scheduled in 
due course.  

However, regular supervision 
and personal development 
plans in place for the service. 

P
age 22



Page 9 of 16

Participation and victim 
satisfaction

Ensure victim satisfaction feedback is 
collated and reviewed by service 
managers

Prevention 
Coordinator

August 2019 Red 16.9.20 – Victim Officer to 
attend Management Board 
meeting in October to outline 
her role and provide 
feedback on victim 
satisfaction. Victim data to be 
incorporated into the 
performance framework.

25.8.20 – Due to the 
relatively low numbers of 
feedback questionnaires 
returned,  a review of both 
the content (simplified) and 
means of circulating (now via 
email) has taken place. 
Since ‘lockdown’, 11 
questionnaires have been 
circulated but the response 
rate (one) has been 
disappointing. More work will 
be actioned with a view to 
more pro-actively engaging 
with victims. Future updates 
(quantitative and qualitative) 
will be built into the 
performance management 
framework.

P
age 23



Page 10 of 16

Establish a children/young people’s 
participation group 

Service 
Managers

September 
2019

Green 16.9.20 – Information 
gathered from children and 
young people by the 
Participation Workers has 
been incorporated into the 
Quality Assurance 
Framework and will be 
reported to the board bi-
annually.

Lead Practitioners in the 
process of developing 
feedback forms for children, 
young people and 
parents/carers by October 
2020.

25.8.20 - See feedback from 
young people in section 3 of 
the performance framework 
circulated to the board. 

Leaflets to be developed and shared 
with children, young people and 
families who become involved with 
the service.  As identified in self-
assessment Standard 2.

Lead 
Practitioners

Sept 2020 Green 16.9.20 – Leaflets have been 
completed. 

25.8.20 - This work is in 
progress and draft leaflets 
will be available for the next 
board meeting in October

P
age 24



Page 11 of 16

Consider developing a more 
appropriate drop in location for young 
people

Head of 
Education and 
Family Support

September 
2019

Red 16.9.20 – Board members 
are asked to identify/agree 
(a) an interim drop in location 
for young people and
(b) whether Ravens Court 
remains a viable option in the 
medium to long term

25.8.20 – The move to 
Ravens Court has been 
delayed due to the 
pandemic. Plans will be re-
instated once safe to do so. 
This was also identified as 
an area for development 
within the self-assessment 
(standard 1).  

P
age 25



Page 12 of 16

Additional areas for development identified by National Standards Self-Assessment 2019-2020

RAG Code Definition

Green Action on target

Amber Action off target

Red Action overdue

Area for development Action By Who Target Date RAG Progress Update
Standard 1 – Out of Court Disposals 
Develop restorative 
approaches training within 
schools following an increase 
in request

Lead Practitioners along with 
Prevention Co-ordinator to 
develop an offer to schools in 
the restorative approaches 
model. 

Lead Practitioner 
sand Prevention Co-
ordinator

March 2021 Green 16.9.20 - Develop a 
process for schools to 
request support for RA. 
Overview to be provided 
to schools with:
 What RA is
 How RA can be 

implemented within 
schools

 Commitment in 
respect of training 
requirements.

Review the effectiveness of 
Police Restorative Justice 
Disposals and the impact of 
the Knife Crime Programme

South Wales Police (SWP) 
alongside YJS to review how 
police restorative justice 
disposals are delivered and 
what impact they have on 
young people.

SWP/YJS March 2021 Green 16.9.20 – A process is 
almost finalised and will 
be completed by end of 
October 2020 to 
highlight clearly how the 
Police and YJS Police 
officer will work together 

P
age 26



Page 13 of 16

Area for development Action By Who Target Date RAG Progress Update

SWP alongside YJS to review 
the delivery of the knife 
programme and impact on 
young people.

Report to be provided to 
Management Board on both 
areas by March 2021

 

SWP/YJS

SWP/YJS

in the delivery of 
Restorative Justice.

16.9.20 - The Police 
Officer within the YJS 
has developed 
worksheets and 
activities that can be 
delivered to young 
people around the risks 
of this offending 
behaviour. This work 
can be delivered when 
required to do so. 

Create an Out of Court 
Disposal (OOCD) Scrutiny 
Panel to ensure consistency 
of approach to interventions

Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s office, SWP 
and YJS to consider how an 
OOCD panel could be 
implemented.

PCC and SWP March 2021 Green 16.9.20 – Meeting has 
been arranged for 18 
October 2020 with PCC 
and Safer Wales to 
review support and 
interventions available

Ensure there is good 
multiagency representation at 
risk management panels and 
actions as to how risk are 
managed are clearly 
recorded and progressed

Guidance to be written and 
clear to demonstrate how risk 
management in relation to 
safety and wellbeing is 
managed and shared across 
partners.

Lead Practitioners December 
2020

Green 16.9.20 – Lead 
Practitioners to 
complete guidance by 
end of October 2020.

Create a resource of 
Volunteer Mentors to support 
young people who become 
known to the service

Prevention Co-ordinator and 
Reparation Worker to 
increase and train volunteer 
pool who can safely and 
effectively support young 

Prevention Co-
ordinator

March 2021 Green 16.9.20 - A recruitment 
drive was undertaken in 
February where a 
number of volunteers 
were recruited. 

P
age 27



Page 14 of 16

Area for development Action By Who Target Date RAG Progress Update
people who become known to 
the service.

However, with the 
impact of COVID, the 
ability to deliver some of 
the training for 
volunteers was affected 
and some of those 
volunteers are no longer 
available to assist. 
However, a number are 
still keen to support the 
YJS and the service will 
continue to work with 
these volunteers in 
respect of Referral 
Order panels. A further 
recruitment drive will 
take place in the new 
year.

Standard 2 – At Court – Strategic Self-Assessment
Ensure that specialist support 
is offered to young people in 
a timely way

A preferred provider list to be 
created and shared with the 
courts so there are 
opportunities to identify the 
best possible specialists that 
can ensure good quality 
assessment is conducted.

Children Social 
Care/Lead 
Practitioners

September 
2020

Green 16.9.20 Bridgend legal 
department has advised 
that there is no specific 
provider list however, 
they will assist the YJS 
should the need for a 
specialist assessment 
be required. 

Ensure there is no justice by 
geography, interventions 
offered via an OOCD in other 
local areas need to be 
replicated across regions

SWP to explore interventions 
and actions undertaken in 
other forces to ensure that 
children residing in Bridgend 
have the same opportunities 

SWP March 2021 Green 16.9.20 - DW to follow 
up with SWP.

P
age 28



Page 15 of 16

Area for development Action By Who Target Date RAG Progress Update
as others.

To gain feedback from the 
courts in respect of the 
quality of support offered to 
young people that assists the 
courts in making sound 
decisions.

Court feedback form 
developed and to be issued 
after submission of reports to 
the court.

Courts/YJS March 2021 Green 16.9.20 - This has been 
implemented and forms 
that are being returned 
from courts are being 
held centrally on the 
children’s records.

Standard 4 – In Secure Settings  – Strategic 
Service quality 

To review understanding of 
the role and responsibilities 
of management board 
members to ensure 
appropriate challenge is 
offered to the service.

YJB to undertake a review 
similar to that completed in 
January 2020

YJB 
Sept 2020

Amber 16.9.20 – YJB will 
conduct a brief review 
of progress w/b 23 
November 2020. This 
work will review current 
policies, procedures, 
short staff interview and 
observations on 
practice to comment on 
any changes noted 
since the review 
undertaken in January 
2020

Standard 4 – In Secure Setting - Operational
Communication and 
information sharing

To make sure that 
communications and 
information exchange, 
through use of the Youth 
Justice Application 
Framework (YJAF), are in 

For Lead Practitioners to 
familiarise themselves with 
the YJAF system and 
develop their knowledge of 
this by working closely with 
YCS and YJB

Lead 
Practitioner/YJB/YCS

March 2021 Amber 16.9.20 – Lead 
Practitioners to link with 
YJB to discuss further. 
Meeting to be held to 
understand roles and 
responsibilities in more 
detail.

P
age 29



Page 16 of 16

Area for development Action By Who Target Date RAG Progress Update
line with Youth Custody 
Service requirements. 

P
age 30



Appendix 2

BRIDGEND YOUTH JUSTICE 
SERVICE

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK

FOR
MANAGEMENT BOARD 

14 OCTOBER 2020

Page 31



Page 2 of 22

Contents

1. Performance data

1.1 Current interventions

1.2 Staffing

1.3 Finance

2. Quality assurance 

3. Voice of young people and families

Page 32



Page 3 of 22

1 PERFORMANCE DATA 

Performance data in this section relates to current cases open to the Youth Justice Service as at 31 August 2020.

1.1 Current Interventions
There were 43 cases open to the Youth Justice Service as at 31 August 2020.  This includes 2 caretaking cases overseen on behalf of 
another local authority areas. 16 (37.2%) of the cases are for statutory interventions and 27 (62.8%) are for non-statutory 
interventions.  There are currently no young people on the active caseload who have requested a service in welsh. 
 

Number of cases open as at 
31.8.20 Intervention type

Number of 
interventions Male Female

Prevention 5 5 -
Bureau (includes 1 caretaking case) 22 17 5
Referral Order (includes 1 caretaking case) 11 8 3
Youth Rehabilitation Order 2 2 -
Youth Rehabilitation Order with Intensive 
Supervision and Surveillance (ISS) 2 2 -
Detention and Training Order Post Custody Licence 1 1 -

43

Total 43 35 8

81.4% of the caseload are male and 18.6% are female.

100%

77.27%

72.70%

100%

100%

100%

22.73%

27.30%

Prevention

Bureau

Referral Order

Youth Rehabilitation Order

Youth Rehabilitation Order - ISS

DTO Post Custody Licence

Male Female

Interventions - Gender Profile

An age profile of the young people who are open to the service at 31 August 2020 is appended below.

P
age 33



Page 4 of 22

12 yrs 13 yrs 14 yrs 15 yrs 16 yrs 17 yrs
0

2

4

6

8

10

Male Female

Bureau Interventions
Age and Gender Profile

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

Youth 
Rehabilitation 

Order

17 yrs Youth 
Rehabilitation 

Order - ISS

17 yrs
0

0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

1
1.2

Male Female

YRO and YRO with ISS Interventions
Age and Gender Profile

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

 1 (2.3%) is aged 9
 1 (2.3%) is aged 12
 2 (4.7%) are aged 13
 10 (23.3%) are aged 14
 9 (20.9%) are aged 15
 10 (23.3%) are aged 16
 9 (20.9%) are aged 17 
 1 (2.3%) is aged 18  

The following graphs outline the age and gender profile for each active intervention type.

 

14 yrs 15 yrs 16 yrs 17 yrs 18 yrs
0

1

2

3

4

5

Male Female

Referral Order Interventions
Age and Gender Profile

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

9 yrs 13 yrs 14 yrs 15 yrs
0

0.5
1

1.5
2

2.5

Male Female

Prevention Interventions
Age and Gender Profile

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

P
age 34



Page 5 of 22

17 yrs
0

0.5

1

1.5

Male Female

DTO Post Custody Licence Intervention
Age and Gender Profile

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

The graph below outlines the ethnicity profile for the active interventions as at 31 August 2020.

P
age 35



Page 6 of 22

32

1 1 16 2

White British White Welsh White and Black 
African

White European
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Male Female

Ethnicity Profile - Active Interventions
N

um
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e

The following table outlines support young people are receiving from services within Bridgend County Borough Council

Type of service within BCBC
Number of young 
people receiving 

additional support
Looked After Children 9
Care and Support 8
Child Protection Register 3
Early Help only 5
Youth Justice Service only 18
Total number of young people 43

P
age 36



Page 7 of 22

Offending Behaviour

Current Offences
5 of the 43 active interventions are not included as young people referred to prevention have not gone through the criminal justice 
system. Of those 38 young people who had committed an offence 78.9% were male and 21.1% were female.  

The table below outlines the main offence committed by a young person that has resulted in them receiving their intervention. The 
main offence is determined by the gravity factor which provides offences with a score, which is calculated based on the seriousness.

 Main offence

*Public 
Order

*Violence 
Against  
Person

Robbery Criminal 
Damage

Dugs 
Offences Burglary Theft Breach of 

Order

Total 
number 

of 
young 
people

Intervention type

M F M F M F M F M F M F M F M F  
Bureau (includes 1 caretaking case) 4 7 3 1 2 2 2 1 22
Referral Order (includes 1 caretaking case) 1 1 4 1 2 1 1 11
Youth Rehabilitation Order 2 2
Youth Rehabilitation Order with ISS 1 1 2
Detention & Training Order 1 1

Total 5 1 13 4 3 1 3 2 2 1 1 2 38

*A further breakdown of the violence against person and public order offence categories are provided in the graphs below

P
age 37



Page 8 of 22

Assault by beating Common Assault ABH GBH
0

2

4

6

8

Male Female

Violence Against Person Offences

Type of offence

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

44.7% of the main offences committed by young people were violence against the person offences.  76.5% were committed by males 
and 23.5% were committed by females

Affray Drunk and 
Disorderly

Possession of 
Offensive 
Weapon

Possession of 
Knife Blade

Racially 
Aggravated 
Public Order

0

1

2

Male Female

Public Order Offences

Type of Offence

N
um

be
r o

f Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e

15.8% of the main offences committed by young people were public order offences.  83.3% were committed by males and 16.7% were 
committed by females.

The tables below outline the total number of offences each young person has committed which has resulted in their Youth Justice 
Service intervention. 

P
age 38



Page 9 of 22

Bureau Interventions 

Public 
Order

Violence 
Against 
Person

Burglary 
non 

domestic

Criminal 
Damage

Drugs 
Offences Theft Vehicle 

InterferenceBureau (22 young people)

M F M F M F M F M F M F M F

Total 
number 

of young 
people

Young people committing 1 offence 3 1 3 2 1 2 2 1 15
1 1 1
2 1
1 1 1
1 1 1
1 1 1

1 1 1

Young people committing 2 offences

2 1
Total 22

Referral Order Interventions
Public 
Order

Violence 
Against 
Person

Theft and 
Handling

Criminal 
Damage

Drugs 
Offences Burglary Robbery

Referral Order (11 young people)
M F M F M F M F M F M F M F

Total 
number 

of young 
people

Young people committing 1 offence 1 1 2
1 1 1
1 1 1Young people committing 2 offences

1 1 1
3 1Young people committing 3 offences 1 1 1 1

4 1
2 1 1 1Young people committing 4 offences
2 2 1

Young people committing 6 offences 5 1 1
Total 11

Youth Rehabilitation Order Interventions
Youth Rehabilitation Order (2 young 

people)

Public 
Order

Violence 
Against 
Person

Theft and 
Handling

Criminal 
Damage

Breach of 
Statutory 

Order

Total 
number 

of young 

P
age 39



Page 10 of 22

M F M F M F M F M F people
Young people committing 3 offences  1        2  1
Young people committing 7 offences 2 3 1 1 1

Total 2

Youth Rehabilitation Order with ISS Intervention
Public 
Order

Violence 
Against 
Person

Criminal 
Damage

Robbery Breach 
of Bail

TheftYouth Rehabilitation Order with ISS (2 
young people)

M F M F M F M F M F M F

Total 
number of 

young 
people

Young people committing 6 offences 1  4  1  1
1 1 3 1 1

Total 2

Detention and Training Order Post Custody Licence
Public Order Violence 

Against PersonDetention and Training Order Post 
Custody Licence (1 young person) M F M F

Total number 
of young 
people 

Young people committing 2 offences 1  1  1

Asset Plus Assessments

Assessments are used to help improve knowledge of a child’s situation and the reasons for their offending behaviour, including 
experience of trauma and exploitation. The aim of Asset Plus is to deliver a nationally consistent and up to date evidence based 
assessment and planning interventions framework for Youth Justice Service (YJS) and secure establishments. The assessment 
framework incorporates a strengths based approach that identifies, risk, need and a child focused response that manages risk and 
facilitates desistance from crime. This enables the practitioner to reach defensible conclusions in reports for courts or panels regarding 
the likelihood of future offending behaviour, and of the risk of harm the child may pose to others, for example.

Asset Plus assessments are generated at the start of a young person’s order and reviewed quarterly, or at times when significant 
changes to the young person’s circumstances become evident.  Progress towards desistance is evaluated at these review points and 
at the completion of the young person’s involvement with the YJS. 

P
age 40



Page 11 of 22

A comparison of the Asset Plus stages completed during the period 1.1.20 to 20.9.20 compared to the same period the previous year 
has been carried out.

25 asset plus stages were completed during the period 1.1.19 to 30.9.19.  9(36%) were completed within 14 days, 3(12%) were 
completed within 15-29 days and 13(52%) were completed in 30+ days.
 
For the same period in 2020, 65 stage were completed, 8(12%) are still in progress, 41(63%) were completed within 14 days, 9(14%) 
within 15-29 days and 7(11%) were completed in 30+ days.

The graph below outlines the number of Asset Plus assessment stages completed by practitioners for the period 1.8.20 – 31.8.20.  
The average number of days a stage was in progress before completion was 9 days.

P
age 41



Page 12 of 22

Asset Plus Stages completed Asset Plus Stages In progress
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Number of Asset Plus stages completed
 1.8.20 - 31.8.20

N
um

be
r o

f A
ss

et
 P

lu
s s

ta
ge

s

In comparison 11 Asset Plus assessment stages were completed during the same period the previous year and the average number 
of days a stage was in progress before completion was 71.5 days.

The graphs below outline the levels of risk of serious harm and safety and wellbeing judgements identified in relation to the Asset Plus 
assessments completed during the period 1.8.20 – 31.8.20. 

Referral in 
(OOCD)

Pre Sentence 
Report 

Referral Order 
Report

Review Case Closure
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Low Medium

Risk of Serious Harm Judgement

Type of assessment and level of risk identified

N
um

be
r o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

Referral in 
(OOCD)

Pre Sentence 
Report 

Referral Order 
Report

Review Case Closure
0
1
2
3
4
5
6

Low Medium High

Safety and Wellbeing Judgement

Type of assessment and level of risk identified

N
um

be
r o

f s
ss

es
sm

en
ts

P
age 42



Page 13 of 22

Education information 

Young people of statutory school age by school/provision attended

Total number of 
interventions open 

as at 31.8.20

Total number of 
young people of 
statutory school 

age

Name of school provision Number of 
young people

Archbishop McGrath Catholic High School 1
Brynteg Comprehensive 3
Bryntirion Comprehensive 1
Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen 4
Maesteg School 1
Oldcastle Primary School 1
Pencoed Comprehensive School 1
Porthcawl Comprehensive School 1
The Bridge Alternative Provision 1
Ysgol Bryn Castell (YBC) 7
Bridgend College – alternative school provision 1
Pencoed College – Junior Apprenticeship alternative school 
programme 2

Headlands School 1
Educated other than at school (EOTAS) 3

43 28

Total 28

Young people of statutory school age - number of school hours attended at school provision
Number of ETE hours 
attended at provision

Number of young 
people

Narrative

25 23
20 1 EOTAS tuition – case has now closed
15 1 Full timetable (25 hrs) offered at YBC – Case has now closed.
14 1 Caretaking case – EOTAS provision arranged by home YOT 
10 2 1 young person has 10 hours EOTAS provision as he has been excluded 

from mainstream education following assaults on teaching staff.   The 
other was on a reduced timetable of 2 hrs a day until he started college 

P
age 43



Page 14 of 22

which was delayed due to the Covid 19 pandemic. This case has now 
closed. 

Total 28

Young people above school age by training/employment provision attended

Total number of interventions 
open as at 31.8.20

Total number of young people 
above school age.

Type of Education Training Employment 
(ETE) or Not in Education Training or 

Employment (NEET)
Number of young people

Attending further education 3
Attending 6th form 1
Building Skills Project 1
Engaged with training provider 3
NEET 7

43 15

Total 15

Young people above school age - number of hours attended at training/employment provision
Number of ETE hours 
attended at provision

Number of young people Comments

25 3
19 1 Attended 6th form at YBC – case now closed 
16 1 Engaged with a training provider 
6 1 Attends Building Skills 
3 1 Attends part time training.   
2 1 Engagement with Moving Forward Project
0 7 6 young people are NEET.   1 case has been closed. 

Total 15
Caseload information by primary case workers

The information below reflects primary case worker allocations and other team practitioners who are also providing support to 
individual cases as at 31.8.20.  

P
age 44



Page 15 of 22

Primary Case worker

Number 
of 

statutory 
cases

Number 
of non-

statutory 
cases

Non key responsible team 
members co-working statutory 

cases

Non key responsible team 
members co-working non 

statutory cases

Total 
number 
of young 
people

Social Worker 1 9 8

Reparation Coordinator - 6
WCADA Worker - 2
Specialist Health Worker - 5
Court and Bail Coordinator - 1
Training and Employment 
Officer - 1

WCADA Worker – 1
Specialist Health Worker – 2

17

Social Worker 2 (sick) 0 0 0

Social Worker 3 5 5

Reparation Coordinator – 5
WCADA Worker – 3
Specialist Health Worker – 3
ISS Support Worker – 1
Court and Bail Coordinator - 1 

Specialist Health Worker – 4
WCADA Worker - 2

10

Social Worker 4 1 1 Reparation Coordinator – 1
Specialist Health Worker - 1

Court and Bail Coordinator - 1 2

ISS Support Worker 0 1 1

Early Intervention Worker 0 5 WCADA Worker – 1
Specialist Health Worker - 2 5

Parenting Co-ordinator 0 4 Specialist Health Worker – 1
YOS Police Officer - 1 4

Reparation and Unpaid Work 
Co-ordinator 1 2 Specialist Health Worker - 1 3

Victim Officer 0 1 1

Total number of young people 16 27 43

The information below reflects the total number of cases that multi agency workers are providing support for.

Multi Agency Worker
Number of 

statutory cases 
co-working

Number of non-
statutory cases 

co-working 

Total number of 
cases co-
working

Specialist Health Worker 9 10 19

P
age 45



Page 16 of 22

WCADA Worker 5 4 9

Speech and Language Therapist 0 0 0

Probation Officer 0 0 0

YOS Police Officer 0 1 1

Interventions Closed

1 August 2020 to 31 August 2020

8 interventions were closed during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 August 2020, 2 (25%) were for statutory cases and 6 (75%) were 
for non-statutory cases as outlined below. 

Type of intervention Number of 
interventions 

closed

Outcome of intervention

Prevention 1 Not started programme no longer appropriate as family receiving appropriate 
support from Social Services.

Bureau 5 3 completed
1 not completed as young person missed sessions
1 not completed young person reoffended and appeared at bureau again for 
further offences.

ISSP Programme Condition of Bail 1 Completed
Youth Rehabilitation Order 1 Not completed young person reoffended and was sentenced at court to a YRO 

with 30 day tag and 80 days reparation activity requirement
Total number of interventions 8

In comparison, 24 interventions were closed during the same period the previous year 1 August 2019 to 31 August 2019 of which 19 
(79.2%) were for non-statutory cases and 5 (20.8%) were for statutory cases.  
 For the non-statutory cases 11 were recorded as being successfully completed, 1 not started due to non-engagement, 1 not 

started programme no longer appropriate, 1 not completed as young person reoffended and 5 had no outcomes recorded.  
 For the statutory cases 2 were completed, 1 breached and was resentenced to custody, 1 not completed as young person 

reoffended and 1 had no outcome recorded. 

Interventions Opened

P
age 46



Page 17 of 22

1 August 2020 to 31 August 2020
11 new interventions were opened during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 August 2020.  9 (81.8%) were for non-statutory cases and 2 
(18.2%) of the interventions were for statutory cases.  Of the new interventions that were opened during this period 11(100%) were 
male. 

Type of intervention Number of interventions opened Male Female
Prevention 2 2 -
Bureau 7 7 -
Youth Rehabilitation Order 1 1 -
Youth Rehabilitation Order ISS requirement 1 1 -
Total number of interventions 11 11 -

1 August 2019 – 31 August 2019
In comparison, 16 new interventions were opened during the same period the previous year 1 August 2019 to 31 August 2019 of 
which 10 (62.5%) were for non-statutory cases and 6 (37.5%) were for statutory cases. 8 (50%) were male and 8 (50%) were female. 

Type of intervention Number of interventions opened Male Female
Prevention 2 1 1
Bureau 7 3 4
Referral Order 5 2 3
DTO Custody Programme 1 1 -
Voluntary Support 1 1 -
Total number of interventions 16 8 8

P
age 47



Page 18 of 22

1.3 Staffing Update for BYJS Management Board as at 30 September 
2020

POST STATUS Comments RAG DATE OF LAST 
SUPERVSION

Lead Practitioner 1 In post 2 September 2020
Lead Practitioner 2 In post 2 September 2020
Prevention Coordinator In post Scheduled for 2 

October 2020
Parenting Coordinator In post 19 September 2020
Social Worker 1 In post 2 September 2020
Social Worker 2 Long term sick since 

18.4.20
Current paper to expire 
on 6.11.20 

2 April 2020

Social Worker 3 In post 21 September 2020
Social Worker 4 In post Scheduled for 2 

October 2020
Education Officer Vacant post Restructure to 

commence 5.10.20
n/a

Training and Employment 
Officer

In post 14 September 2020

Reparation and Unpaid Work 
Coordinator

In post 9 September 2020

Victim Officer In post 19 August 2020
Early Intervention Worker In post 14 September 2020
ISSP Support Worker In post 8 September 2020
Court and Bail Coordinator In post 17 September 2020
Referral Order Coordinator Vacant n/a
Senior Practitioner – Parc 
Prison

In post 28 July 2020

Substance Misuse Worker – 
Welsh Centre for Alcohol and 
Dependency and Addiction 
(WCADA)

In post 15 September 2020

Seconded Police Officer In post 28 August 2020
Seconded Probation Officer In post 14 February 2020
Speech and Language 
Therapist

Vacant Recruitment underway n/a

Specialist Health Visitor In post Scheduled for 2 
October 2020

1.4 FINANCE UPDATE

YOS MANAGEMENT BOARD FINANCE UPDATE

A finance update will be provided to the Board meeting in December.

Page 48



Page 19 of 22

2. QUALITY ASSURANCE WORK BRIDGEND YOUTH JUSTICE 
SERVICE

As per the quality assurance framework within the YJS, the management board will be 
updated twice a year in terms of the quality assurance work that is being undertaken within 
the service. Lead Practitioners continue to gate keep reports and assessment and quality 
assurance work is undertaken on a monthly basis on closed cases. Feedback from this work 
is given to staff in terms of strengths and areas for development.

The next report to board on quality assurance work will be given in December 2020

Page 49



Page 20 of 22

Male Female 
0

2

4

6

8

Gender profile of young people 
who responded to consultation

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

17yrs 16yrs 15yrs 14yrs 13yrs 12yrs
0

1

2

3

4

5

Age profile of young people who 
responded to consultation

N
um

er
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e

3. YOUNG PERSON AND VICTIM FEEDBACK

3.1 VOICE OF YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES 

During June 2020, the Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS), supported by the Children’s 
Rights and Participation team, undertook a consultation to gather the thoughts and experiences 
of young people that had recently been through, or were currently going through, an 
intervention from the BYJS team.

The questions were developed through the senior management team within the BYJS, and 
were focussed on enabling young people to provide feedback on both positive and negative 
experiences of their respective interventions in order to help inform future delivery and practice. 

Interviews were conducted over the phone to account for the restrictions imposed in the Covid-
19 pandemic. Each young person was asked the same open ended questions to allow 
participants the opportunity to develop their answer should they choose. In total, 12 young 
people participated, and due to the phrasing of the questions, many of the responses were 
narrative.

A summary of the responses are detailed in 
the following report. 

Question 1 What did you like about the support you received from the Youth Justice 
Service?

8 of the 12 young people that took part in the consultation described their experience of being 
supported through the BYJS as positive. Comments included: 

“It’s alright, all good”
“They were helpful with jobs, connected me with job projects”
“Enjoyed working with Chris”
“She was nice” (x2)
“Techniques given to stay out of trouble”
“Really supportive, listened to me and answered my questions”
“Helpful worker, supportive”

The other young people either didn’t have an opinion, or weren’t able to articulate their 
experience as a positive or negative. 

Page 50



Page 21 of 22

Question 2 What didn’t you like?

With the exception of 2 young people, who replied “didn’t like talking to them” and “didn’t pay 
attention” respectively, the cohort offered no comments for this question.

Question 3 What do you think could have made the support better?

8 of the 12 young people who participated didn’t think support could have been made better. 
2 of these were because they felt that the support they received was really good and could 
not have been improved. Other comments included:

“If the process was speeded up”
“Don’t ring when I’m sleeping”
“Only so much can be done”

Question 4 What did your worker do that helped?

The prevailing answer given by young people was that they appreciated having someone to 
talk to, and be listened too. Comments included:

“Kept me out of trouble, had someone to talk to”
“Really helpful to talk to, transferred to mental health service and drug support”
“Takes me home from college and chats while we travel”
“Let me talk to her and really listened”
“Listened to me”

In addition, young people enjoyed learning more practical examples/techniques of how to 
manage their behaviour.

“Provided guidance and helped me learn right from wrong” (x2)
“Papers to write, topics to talk about”

Other comments included:

“Hasn’t done much, same s**t as previous worker – all the same”
“No, likes to do own thing”
“No idea”
“Nothing really”

Question 5 How has your situation changed since support?

9 of the 12 young people that participated identified that their behaviour, and their personal 
situation, had improved as a result of their respective interventions. Comments included: 

“Gone better, behave a lot better”
“A lot better, stay down Bridgend, getting a house and a job”
“Got better, not got in trouble”
“Changed a lot, feeling more confident, changed behaviour – think more about what he’s 
doing”
“Still with worker – fortnightly conversation, managing to stay out of trouble through own 
choices, still hanging around with same people”
“Still with worker, more aware of behaviour, staying out of trouble more”

Page 51



Page 22 of 22

“Definite changes – more aware of behaviour and what she does, improved relationships with 
family and friends”
“Staying out of trouble, more mindful of behaviour” (x2)

Question 6 What impact has being in lockdown had on you and how could support 
have been best offered during this period?

5 of the 12 young people highlighted that while they were staying at home, the contact they 
received from their individual workers was welcomed. Comments included: 

“Not too bad, getting worse as it’s going, support through text and phone calls”
“Worker has been messaging me to see about my future”
“Staying in and playing games.  Still receiving telephone support which is helpful”
“Staying in.  Continued support which has helped” (x2).

The other young people advised that while they were not staying at home, they were aware 
of how to ensure they were staying safe: 

“Goes out sometimes, social distancing though”. 
“Not staying in, a bit more aware of distancing” (x2)
“Been going out seeing friends, no support required”

Question 7 The Youth Justice Service would like to hear from young people 
regularly. What do you think is the best way for the views of young 
people to be gathered…social media, apps, letters, event?

Utilising social media platforms by the BYJS team was the biggest suggestion from young 
people, with 7 of the 12 participants highlighting this as they preferred method of 
communication. Others suggestions included, phone calls (3 young people) and don’t know 
(2 young people).

Page 52



Appendix 3

Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS) Management Board

1. Purpose

1.1 To bring together the statutory partners as identified in the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 and non-statutory partners who make a significant 
contribution to the delivery of youth justice services in Bridgend County 
Borough

1.2 To work collaboratively to prevent and reduce youth crime in Bridgend 
County Borough

1.3 To ensure the statutory duties set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and 
subsequent reviews are met

1.4 To contribute to the Wellbeing Objectives detailed in the Wellbeing Plan for 
Bridgend

2. Vision

2.1 Together we will support children and young people to prevent offending 
behaviour by enabling them to respond positively to their communities and 
reach their full potential.

3. Responsibilities

3.1 The Bridgend Youth Justice Management Board will: 

 Set out a strategic direction for the local delivery of a ‘Justice Service for 
Young People’ to ensure that statutory requirements are met and key plans 
are developed and delivered effectively.  

 Support BCBC’s Chief Executive in their duty to formulae and implement the 
annual youth justice plan.  This plan sets out how youth justice services in 
Bridgend are composed, provided and funded; how the BYJS will operate and 
what functions it will carry out.

 Ensure the YJS tailors its services to the needs of local young people and that 
they have an opportunity to shape the services and interventions they receive

 Hold accountable the YJS and partner agencies for their contribution to 
performance against the Wales Youth Justice Indicators and other local 
measures.

 Implement appropriate staff, management and infra structure arrangements to 
be able to deliver the statutory duties and obligations of the service

 Take responsibility for ensuring that the actions undertaken by the BYJS 
protects the safety, of children and young people, the staff who work with 
them, and members of the public

 Embed the principal aim of preventing offending by children and young people 
in the work of relevant strategic partnerships including, but not limited to, the 

Page 53



Appendix 3

Bridgend Public Services Board, the Bridgend Community Safety Partnership 
and the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board 

 Take a lead role in scrutinising the YJS’s response to Community 
Safeguarding and Public Protection incidents.  When a safety or public 
protection incident occurs the YJS must inform the YJB and undertake a 
review of learning, causes and key areas for improvement.  The board is 
responsible for monitoring all actions and learning for the BYJS and for 
sharing learning with local partners, including local safeguarding boards

 Scrutinise the arrangements in place for children and young people involved 
in the Youth Justice system to have access to universal and specialist 
services delivered by partners and other key agencies 

 Address and solve any difficulties that the BYJS and its partners face when 
planning and delivering reintegration and resettlement support.

 Agree resources to be allocated  from partner agencies 
 Agree an information sharing protocol and designate a liaison officer in each 

member organisation
 Report progress to Bridgend Public Services Board, through the performance 

management system bi annually or as requested by the board
 Report to the Community Safety Overview and Scrutiny Committee or other 

Scrutiny Committees as requested

3. Sustainable Development

3.1 The Bridgend Youth Justice Management Board will act in accordance with 
sustainable development principle, ie working to ensure the needs of the 
present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 
their own needs.  The Board will:

 Think about the long term

 Look to prevent problems

 Work towards the seven wellbeing goals as set out in the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in all that they do

 Work with each other

 Work with people and communities, by involving them

The Seven Wellbeing Goals

A Prosperous 
Wales

A Resilient 
Wales

A Healthier 
Wales

A More 
Equal 
Wales

A Wales of 
Cohesive 

Communities

A Wales of 
Vibrant 

Culture and 
Thriving 
Welsh 

Language

A Globally 
Responsible 

Wales

Page 54



Appendix 3

4. Membership

4.1 In line with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the statutory 
funding members are: 

 Bridgend County Borough Council
 South Wales Police
 National Probation Service
 Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board

4.2 The Management Board has the power to co-opt additional members.  Co-
opted members are:

o South Wales Fire and Rescue Service
o Career Wales
o Bridgend College
o WGADA
o WLGA
o South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner

4.3 Members will be at senior officer level, with the authority to make decision. 

4.4 Deputising Arrangements

 Members will identify a nominated deputy to attend where the member is not 
available.

 That deputy should be fully briefed and have all powers delegated for the 
purposes of the activity of partnership

 A list of members is attached.

5. Chairing Arrangements

5.1 There will be co-chairing arrangements for the first year of operation
5.2 Both chairs will be elected annually from one of the statutory members
5.2 The maximum term of office for a chair is 2 years
5.3 In the unlikely absence of both chairs a deputy will be selected from members 

present

6. Task and Finish Groups

6.1 The board may establish task and finish groups to address specific issues 
6.2 Membership of task and finish groups to be agreed by the partnership
6.3 Terms of reference, including the expected life of the task and finish group will 

be developed in all cases.

7. Frequency of Meetings

Page 55



Appendix 3

7.1 The Partnership will meet monthly for the first year, then quarterly to coincide 
with Community Safety Partnership meetings.

7.2 Meetings to be held prior to Public Service Board meetings, with sufficient 
time to allow for preparation of reports 

7.3 Additional meetings may be arranged at the discretion of the chair

8. Review 

8.1 The Partnership’s operation and terms of reference will be reviewed annually

9. Co-ordination/Support

9.1 To be provided by the PSB partnership support team

Page 56



Communications Plan:

 The focus of any message should be positive.  
 The service is on an improvement journey. There is an improving picture in 

respect of the service. However, further work is still required to address 
issues identified within recent inspection. 

 We would advise against a press release at this stage. Until the re-
inspection is undertaken, there would be little to update the public on in 
respect of the service.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO CORPORATE PARENTING COMMITTEE 

4 FEBRUARY 2021

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING

INDEPENDENT REVIEWING SERVICE (IRO) REPORT 

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Members of Corporate Parenting 
Committee the Independent Reviewing Service (IRO) Report in line with The 
Independent Reviewing Officers Guidance (Wales) 2004 along with the IRO Service 
Action Plan.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

This report is connected to all corporate well-being objectives relating to care 
experienced children, its central objective being to achieve best outcomes for those 
children and young people through high quality care planning, which in turn helps to 
ensure they live in stable placements with plans for permanence in place.  The care 
planning for these children and young people is integral to Welsh Government’s 
commitment to reduce the number of care experienced children and young people in 
Wales.  

3. Background

3.1. The appointment of Independent Reviewing Officer’s (IRO’s) by Local Authorities is 
a legal requirement and their core functions are governed by legislation and 
guidance as follows:

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



 The Adoption and Children Act 2002. 
 The Independent Reviewing Officers Guidance (Wales) 2004.

3.2 The Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) service has an authoritative role, in 
assuring the quality of care planning is achieved.  The Independent Reviewing 
Officers Guidance (Wales) 2004 states this report must identify good practice but 
must also identify issues for further development, including those where urgent action 
is required. The guidance urges the Local Authority to make effective use of the 
reports from its IRO service so that it can be satisfied that its services can achieve 
best outcomes for the children and young people concerned. 

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 The Independent Reviewing Service report (Appendix A) covers the work of the IRO 
service from April 2019 to March 2020. The report contains performance information 
in respect of the statutory reviewing of children who are Looked After, including 
children with plans for Adoption and Young People with Leaving Care LAC/Pathway 
Plans (under 18) by Bridgend County Borough Council. It also includes information 
on children subject of a child protection plan and reviews of these plans at Child 
Protection Case Conferences. 

4.2 The report also includes information that relates to regulatory requirements in respect 
of: resolution case disputes, IRO caseloads, participation and consultation of young 
people in their Reviews, challenges and achievements in the reporting period and 
service priorities for 2019-20.   

4.3 In addition to the guidance referred to in paragraph 3.1 additional IRO guidance and 
practice standards were introduced at the beginning of 2019. IRO’s have worked to 
improve tracking and monitoring as advised within the Practice Standards and Good 
Practice Guide.

4.4 As described in the report the IRO’s chaired/reviewed 2,022 meetings between April 
2019 and March 2020.  1,506 quality assurance audits were completed relating to 
these meetings.

4.5 The audits highlighted that consultation with children and young people needs to be 
improved to ensure their voice is being heard. Whilst the IRO service has worked to 
improve the consultation document for children and young people, challenges remain 
in encouraging them to complete it. Similarly, children and young people’s 
participation at both their Child Protection Review and Looked After Child Review is 
hugely important and this is an area for improvement in Bridgend as it is only a very 
small proportion of children and young people who are attending their meetings. 
Consequently this is a priority and the team are committed to developing more 
creative ways of engaging with and encouraging participation of all children and 
young people.

4.6 The IRO service have continued to work with the safeguarding teams to improve 
practice around child protection conferences and this has been extended through to 
other agencies such as the Health Visiting services, School Nurses and Midwifery 
Services. The next stage is to work at improving the quality of Looked After Children 
reviews on a multi-agency basis. 

Page 60



4.7 Continuous service improvement is always sought after and as such the Independent 
Reviewing Service aims to continue to have a greater impact in terms of improving 
the quality of the lives of care experienced children and young people.  The IRO 
Service Action Plan (Appendix A) reflects the areas of focus for improvement over 
the next 12 months for the service which will be under constant review. 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There is no impact on the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality impacts arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The implementation of the duties and responsibilities under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act (Wales) (SSWBA) 2014, in turn, supports the promotion of two of the 
seven goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 within the 
County Borough of Bridgend.  By promoting an environment that maximises people’s 
physical and mental well-being and by supporting children, young people, adults and 
their carers and families to fulfil their potential no matter what their circumstances, the 
wellbeing goals of a Healthier and more equal Bridgend and Wales are supported.

7.2 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 provides the basis for driving 
a different kind of public service in Wales, with five ways of working to guide how the 
Authority should work to deliver wellbeing outcomes for people.  The following is a 
summary to show how the five ways of working to achieve the well-being goals have 
been considered in this report:

 Long Term – the IRO Service has a legal requirement to assure the quality of 
care planning is achieved for children and young people enabling them to reach 
their full potential in life.  

 Prevention –the IRO service works closely with safeguarding practitioners and 
Early Help services in developing a comprehensive outcome focused plan for the 
child or young person, to maximise their opportunities and identify focused 
support at the earliest stage.

 Integration – the implementation of the SSWBA requires local authorities to work 
with partners, to ensure care, support and protection of all and more specifically 
it’s most vulnerable. The report evidences consultation between professionals 
and partner agencies with a specific focus to the safe care planning and 
protection for children and young people within the Borough of Bridgend.

 Collaboration – this is currently managed in order to provide the best possible 
intervention for children and people across Bridgend.

 Involvement – the key stakeholders are the care experienced children and young 
people of Bridgend. The IRO service’s engagement with these individuals is 
essential to ensure their voices are heard and included in their meetings. The 
IRO service speak with children and young people and utilise consultation 
documents, quality monitoring forms, complaints process and advocacy services 
to support this. The provision of accessible information and advice helps to 
ensure that the voice of children and young people is heard and responded to.

Page 61



8. Financial implications

8.1 All work will be carried out within existing budgets and therefore there are no financial 
implications arising from this report.

9. Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the Independent Reviewing Service 
report and the IRO service action plan (Appendix A)  

Claire Marchant
CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING
January 2021

Contact officer: Elizabeth Walton-James
Group Manager Safeguarding & IAA

Telephone: (01656) 642073
Email: Elizabeth.walton-james@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal address: Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend

Background documents: NONE

Page 62



1

Appendix A

Independent Reviewing Service

Report from April 2019-March 2020 

P
age 63



2

Report Context:

 Introduction
 Legal Context
 Core IRO Functions 
 Composition of IRO Team 
 Reviewing Activity : Child Protection
 Reviewing Activity : Looked After Children 
 Number of Reviews and timeliness
 Reviewing Performance
 Caseload
 Business Support

General Themes

 Consultation 
 Case Dispute Resolution and Complaints
 Achievements & Challenges 
 IRO Service Development and Achievements 
 IRO Service Priorities

P
age 64



3

Introduction

The Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) service has an authoritative role, in assuring the quality of care planning is achieved.  
The Independent Reviewing Officers Guidance Wales 2004 states this report must identify good practice but must also identify 
issues for further development, including those where urgent action is required. The guidance urges the Local Authority to 
make effective use of the reports from its IRO service so that it can be satisfied that its services can achieve best outcomes 
for the children and young people concerned. 

This Independent Reviewing Service report focuses upon the work of the IRO service from April 2019 to March 2020. As part 
of the services quality assurance role, the report contains performance information in respect of the statutory reviewing of 
children who are Looked After, including children with plans for Adoption and Young People with Leaving Care LAC/Pathway 
Plans (under 18) by Bridgend County Borough Council. It also includes information on children subject of a child protection 
plan and reviews of these plans at Child Protection Case Conferences. 

The report also includes information that relates to regulatory requirements in respect of: resolution case disputes; IRO 
caseloads; participation and consultation of young people in their Reviews, challenges and achievements in the reporting 
period and service priorities for 2019-20.   

Legal Context 

The appointment of IRO’s by Local Authorities is a legal requirement and their core functions are governed by the legal 
regulatory framework outlined below:

 The Adoption and Children Act 2002 detailed the requirements on Local Authorities in respect of the appointment of 
IRO’s. 

 The Independent Reviewing Officers Guidance (Wales) 2004.

P
age 65



4

Core Functions 

The Independent Reviewing Service has an important quality assurance function and works towards ensuring all children 
within the care of Bridgend County Borough Council has a robust effective care plan. This plan is aimed towards improving 
outcomes for children and young people in providing a stable and secure childhood where their health, education and 
emotional wellbeing is promoted through effective care planning. It is the function of the Independent Reviewing Service to 
ensure the care plan is appropriate and progresses safeguarding for children and young people whilst ensuring all their 
identified needs are being met. 

Independent Reviewing Officers are required to independently review the care plans of all Looked After children and those 
children with a Child Protection Plan and subject of the Child Protection Register.  The Review meeting will include consultation 
with and attendance of relevant agencies (health, education and Police etc) and will usually include the child/young person, 
their Social Worker, carers and family members. Time scales for Reviews are set out in the Children Act 1989 & part 6 of the 
Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014, with the first Review taking place within 20 working days, the next Review is held 
within three months following the initial and then subsequent Reviews are held six months from the second Review. 
Subsequent Reviews are held every six months unless there has been an unplanned change of placement where a Review 
must be held within 20 working days. 

Within Bridgend County Borough Council, the IRO Service has the following roles and responsibilities:

 The IRO service has a statutory responsibility under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, Wales 
Safeguarding Procedures and the IRO Guidance for Chairing all Child Protection Conferences and multi-agency Looked 
After Children Reviews, including those children placed for Adoption.

 To Review and oversee the effectiveness and the appropriateness of Care Plans for those Children and Young People 
the Council has responsibility for who are subject of a Child Protection Plan, those children and young people within its 
care.

P
age 66



5

 The Independent Reviewing Service are responsible for ensuring all Looked After Children Reviews and Children 
Protection Conferences take place within compliance as outlined in regulations and to provide a report on each Looked 
After Children Review to include recommendations to any changes to the child/young person’s Care Plan and to monitor 
the progress of the Care Plan by tracking cases between Reviews.

 To ensure the child/young person’s rights are protected and enhanced.

 To ensure the voice of the child is heard throughout the care planning process and to monitor the child’s wishes and 
feelings have been recorded and documented throughout the Care Planning process. 

 To support and advise through a mentoring and coaching role to social work staff in relation to effective care planning. 

 To raise IRO concerns through the agreed Resolution Protocol and to escalate unresolved concerns regarding care 
planning to the appropriate level of the Local Authority’s management structure. To consider the need to seek 
independent legal advice and possible referral of a case to Cafcass.  The quality assurance function of the IRO service 
aims to highlight concerns around specific cases and also any trends relating to care planning practice. It also has a 
duty to highlight good practice. 

 To ensure all care experienced children and young people are subject to Health Plans to promote their health and 
development. The IRO’s have responsibility to ensure the Health Plans are monitored and meeting the children’s needs 
within the Looked After Children Reviewing process.  

 All care experienced children and young people are subject to a Personal Education Plan (PEP). The IRO is responsible 
for ensuring this is in place and are regularly reviewed to ensure all educational needs are being met.

P
age 67



6

 Under the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014, the role of the IRO have expanded to cover responsibility 
for the child’s case and the not just the Review and this is set out in the IRO Standards. 

Composition of the IRO Service

Over the last year, there have been some changes to the composition of the service. The Independent Reviewing Service 
consists of a full time Team Manager, four full-time and four part-time IRO positions. The current IRO cohort have a wealth of 
experience and all have been qualified Social Workers for a substantial period of time. The IRO Service Manager has been 
in the post since June 2019. 

Caseloads

There have been some changes made to the IRO Caseloads since the previous annual report and this is as a result of IROs 
no longer reviewing post 18 plans. This has helped to address concerns by the team regarding capacity to implement the IRO 
Practice Guidance Standards which brought more activity to their workload.

The average full time IRO caseload is currently between 90–100 cases whilst part-time staff are holding average caseloads 
of 65. The service would ideally like a full time caseload to be 90 for each IRO as this will allow sufficient time to be given to 
each case to effectively monitor and review and address any issues that may arise. It has been a committed principle of the 
service to maintain the same IRO wherever possible so that valuable information held by IROs, particularly knowledge of the 
child’s history and family dynamics is not lost. This means that care experienced children have had an element of continuity 
in their lives, with their IRO often being the only person who has remained consistent for the child through changes of team 
structures, placements and often their social workers.

P
age 68



7

Child Protection Register (CPR) Population.

Children subject to the CPR in this period has continued to fluctuate however the average monthly number has been 185 as 
noted in chart 1 below.

Chart 1

0

50

100

150

200

250

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20
CPR at last day of the month 195 189 205 199 206 187 177 184 185 163 171 165
ADDITIONS 19 18 31 13 13 14 12 32 19 19 20 19
DE-REGISTRATIONS 14 24 15 19 6 33 22 26 17 41 12 25

CPR Population 2019-2020

P
age 69



8

The IRO Service held 235 Initial Child Protection Conferences and 595 Review Child Protection Conferences between April 
2019 & March 2020 shown in chart 2. The total number of child protection conferences held in compliance is 98%. 

Chart 2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

April May June July August SeptemberOctober NovemberDecember January February March
Initial Child Protection conferences in compliance 21 25 30 21 12 12 10 33 11 18 26 16
Child Protection reviews in Compliance 27 61 43 63 25 47 45 54 33 71 31 50
Total Conferences 49 86 74 84 37 60 56 87 50 90 57 71

Child Protection Conferences Held in 2019/2020

P
age 70



9

Chart 3 below identifies it is age groups 5-15 years who are the largest proportion of children subject to Child Protection 
registration. The smallest age group is 16-18 yrs. 

Chart 3

16

43

47

47

12

Aged under 1 Aged 1-4 Aged 5-9 Aged10-15 Aged 16-18

CPR By Age Group 2020

P
age 71



10

Chart 4 below records an increase in the number of children being re-registered within a year of de-registration. 

Chart 4

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20
Of those were re-registrtion in the last 12 Months 0 1 11 0 4 2 0 1 0 0 0 0
Addtions to the CPR 19 18 31 13 13 14 12 32 19 19 20 19

Additions to the CPR  of those where reregistrations were in the last 12 months 

The number of re-registrations to the child protection register has increased between April 2019 and March 2020 from 14 to 
19 however it is noted there was a large sibling group who were re-registered in June 2019. On further scrutiny it was 
concluded that some of these cases returned to the conference arena as a result of disguised compliance at the point of their 
earlier de-registration and some as a result of being closed prematurely once stepped down to Care and Support. It was noted 
that, of the children who were re-registered within one year of de-registration, a high proportion were cases where Domestic 

P
age 72



11

Abuse was the main safeguarding concern. From scrutinising these cases it became clear the children were de-registered 
because the parents had either separated or completed work around the effects of domestic abuse on children and following 
a period of no domestic abuse incidents the children were removed from the CPR. However many were then re-registered 
within one year because there had been a further incident of domestic abuse, some of these were where the parents had 
resumed their relationship.  The IRO Service will continue to recommend at RCPC where a child is de-registered that their 
case remain open on a Care and Support basis for at least 3 months and the case is not to close without a Care and Support 
meeting taking place. Any case that returns to an Initial Child Protection Case Conference (ICPC) within 12 months of being 
de-registered will be audited by the IRO Service Manager to scrutinise the processes that were followed and consider any 
lessons that can be learnt. The audit will be provided to the Safeguarding Team Manager and Senior Management Team.

Children’s participation at Child Protection Review Conferences.

Chart 5

Total reviews, 558

The child/young person 
attended the Review, 26

CPR Reviews held 2019/2020, The child/ young person attend the review 

P
age 73



12

Children’s participation at their Review Child Protection Case Conference (RCPC) is hugely important, however it is 
recognised it may not be appropriate for children or young people to attend any or all of the meetings but there are mechanisms 
in place to enable them to attend part of the meeting and meet with the chairperson separately. This is an area for improvement 
in Bridgend as it is only a very small proportion of children and young people who are attending their meetings. The Wales 
Safeguarding Procedures have placed greater emphasis on the importance of the child’s attendance at their conference and 
Bridgend are rolling out training to practitioners currently with part of this training focussing on how children can participate in 
their conference and have their voice heard. 

  

P
age 74



13

Care experienced population

Chart 6

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20
LAC at last day of the month 376 379 375 387 386 384 382 378 387 394 391 394
Children become looked after in the month 2 9 7 17 4 7 5 4 12 13 4 9
Children ceased to be looked after in the month 7 6 11 5 5 9 7 8 3 6 7 6

Care experienced Population in 2019-2020 

P
age 75



14

Chart 7

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

April May June July August September October November December January February March
Of which were held in compliance 82 113 106 115 51 111 106 79 110 87 107 107
Total LAC Reviews 82 114 107 118 51 113 107 79 113 89 109 109

Looked After Reviews Held in 2019/2020

Held in Compliance April May June July August September October November December January February March

No 0 1 1 3 0 2 1 0 3 2 2 2

Yes 82 113 106 115 51 111 106 79 110 87 107 107

Grand Total 82 114 107 118 51 113 107 79 113 89 109 109

P
age 76



15

Chart no 7 above shows how care experienced children numbers have continued to fluctuate over the last year. There have 
also been a large number of unplanned placement breakdowns which has put increased demands on the reviewing service.  
Since the reporting period four Reunifications Workers have been recruited to support children’s foster placements. 

There were a total of 17 Reviews of children who have experienced care held out of compliance between 2019/20. Scrutiny 
of these figures show that the majority of Reviews convened out of timescales were as a result of the ‘change of circumstances’ 
form not being completed in a timely manner by the Social Worker within the Safeguarding Teams.  It is this form which alerts 
the IRO Service to an unplanned placement change and the need for a further Review meeting. However this form has recently 
been simplified for completion on the WCCIS and is now a much shorter document.  It is hoped this will result in its completion 
in a satisfactory timescale. The importance of this matter and its impact upon the IRO service has been raised with 
Safeguarding Team Managers.  More importantly children and young people have a right to have their review within a timely 
manner.

However, there were a small number of LAC Reviews that were not completed within compliance due to IRO sickness and 
lack of capacity within the team to cover these Reviews at such short notice. Since the implementation of the IRO Standards, 
it is good practice to hold a mid-point review meeting to ensure progress is being made and this also assists in early 
identification of issues rather than waiting for the Review itself to note outstanding concerns or drift in a child care plan. The 
IROs are holding mid-point meetings via telephone, virtual platform and email and the feedback is positive in terms of 
identifying drift earlier.

P
age 77



16

Chart 8

23

65

80

146

80

Under 1 Aged 1-4 Aged 5-9 Aged 10-15 Aged 16-18

LAC By Age Group 2020

As can be seen in chart 8 above, the largest proportion of care experienced children are in the age category of 10-15 years 
and the smallest proportion being under 1 year old. Bridgend has an in-house service called Baby in Mind, this is a 

P
age 78



17

pioneering programme designed to prevent new-born children entering into the care of the Local Authority. This service 
commenced in 2018 and comprises of a specialist team including practitioners whose backgrounds include Health Visiting, 
Social Work and family support workers.

In its first year the service worked with 38 families and 87% of the babies worked with remained out of the care system.

The service has continued to see successes but at the time of writing they have not published the latest figures. However 
it is clear this service has greatly reduced the numbers of under 1 year olds becoming accommodated in foster placements 
and mother and baby placements. 

Chart 9

1191

382

LAC Reviews held 2019/2020, The child/ young person attend the 
review (If approriate)

P
age 79



18

It is clear from chart 9 above that further work is required to encourage children who are looked after to attend their review 
meetings where appropriate. To encourage this the IRO Service may need to give greater consideration to the timing and 
venue of the meetings and explore these issues with the young people when they consult with them and younger children 
through direct work their Social Workers. As a service we would wish to see these numbers increase and will consult with 
the Fostering Team to explore how we can together encourage foster carers to support young people to attend their Review 
meeting. Since the report period and as a result of the Covid 19 Pandemic, consultation has been taking place virtually and 
the anecdotal feedback from the IRO’s is positive with many young people preferring this method of communication.  

Advocacy.

In the period of April 2019 – March 2020 a total of 203 referrals were made to Tros Gynnal Plant Advocacy Service for 
ongoing advocacy support. It remains a priority for the IRO Service to ensure all children involved in the child protection 
process or care experienced children have the opportunity to access advocacy support. The IRO’s ensure they discuss 
this when they consult with children and young people. They raise the issue of advocacy at all meetings and record 
advocacy numbers in the quality assurance audits. The IRO’s ensure every child or young person receives an Active Offer 
for Advocacy services. The Active Offer ensures the Social Worker has explained what Advocacy is and how it can support 
them. Children and young people who become looked after and/ or are being discussed at a Child Protection Conference 
are entitled to receive an Active Offer of advocacy support. However the Active Offer should be consistently and regularly 
revisited with children and young people.

Business Support.

There have been changes to arrangements for Business Support supporting the IRO Service. Previously the service was 
supported by four child protection clerks and one fulltime and one part time Business Support staff to assist with facilitating 
Looked After Children Review meetings. The service has been realigned resulting in the child protection clerks being 
separated from the LAC support team, who are now part of the central Business Support Team. The child protection clerks 
have been reduced from four to three clerks. This has impacted upon the efficiency of the service and the IRO service have 

P
age 80



19

noticed an increased pressure on the child protection clerks in meeting increasing demand i.e. increase in child protection 
conferences being held and an increase in the number of children on the child protection register. The clerks are also 
committed to supporting other services which has reduced their availability to the IRO service. The IRO Service and 
Business Support have agreed to have a quarterly interface meeting to address any challenges and monitor any issues of 
compliance. 

     Team Meetings

The IRO Service have held monthly team meetings with regular attendance by other services/agencies e.g. Western Bay 
Adoption Service, quarterly meetings with Cafcass, Vulnerable Groups, Disabled Children’s Team, Permanency Team, 
Voices from Care, Legal Department and Commissioning service. There have also been meetings held between the IRO’s 
and the Head of Service on a quarterly basis.

Case Dispute Resolution and Complaints

Between April 2019 & March 2020, the IRO’s raised concerns on 9 cases under the IRO resolution protocol. These were 
primarily as a result of concerns the young person’s Care Plan was not being progressed and in some instances identified 
work not being completed and the completion of documents outstanding. Disputes were resolved at Team Manager and 
Group Manager level. The IRO service have continued to escalate cases to the Senior Management Team where 
compliance has not been met in terms of frequency/timeliness of statutory visits and core groups. 

There were no complaints in relation to Child Protection Conferences that required resolution via an independent panel.

Previously the IRO Service reviewed the arrangements for Consultation with children and young people and completed a 
small survey with care experienced young people seeking their views on an effective consultation document. The general 
theme was that they reported they would like to have an App. They also said they would like to be able to see their Social 
Worker more often. 

Changes were made to the electronic consultation document and it was hoped the process was more user friendly ensuring 
children and young people are engaging in their reviews and their voices are being heard throughout the care planning 

P
age 81



20

process. However an improvement in the number of consultation forms completed was seen but overall this statistic 
remained low. Enquiries of such an App had taken place, looking at the possibility of an interactive App which would 
enhance consultation and obtain the views, wishes and feelings of children and young people even further. There are two 
Apps currently in development, one is called Mind of My Own and the other is MUSE. We had hoped to make further 
progress with this but this particular App was deemed not suitable to and further progress has been delayed due to the 
Covid 19 pandemic.

The active participation of care experienced young people in planning their care should contribute to improved outcomes. 
To ensure that the views of children and young people are listened to, good practice dictates they should either attend 
and/or participate in their review meetings or should at least be able to express their view by some other appropriate 
method. It is imperative that work continues to grow and develop better means of accessing the voices of children.

IRO Quality Assurance Audit

The IRO’s chaired/reviewed 2,022 meetings between April 2019 and March 2020.  1,506 quality assurance audits were 
completed relating to these meetings. The service aims to complete a quality assurance audit following every meeting as 
this identifies good practice and where practice needs to improve, where processes haven’t been adhered to and any 
pertinent themes that may require further exploration. 

The IRO service have continued to work with the safeguarding teams to improve practice around child protection 
conferences and this has been extended through to other agencies such as the Health Visiting services, School Nurses 
and Midwifery Services. The next stage is to work at improving the quality of Looked After Children reviews on a multi-
agency basis. 

The quality assurance audit form provides data on practice standards and captures data and information relating to the 
IRO standards. Once completed by the IRO following the meeting, the form automatically goes to the Safeguarding Team 
Manager of the case holding team for their scrutiny and management oversight. This form also alerts the Safeguarding 
Team Manager to any outstanding pieces of work, compliance issues and identifies areas of good practice. 

P
age 82



21

Challenges and Achievements

The IRO guidance and practice standards were introduced at the beginning of 2019. IRO’s have worked to improve tracking 
and monitoring as advised within the Practice Standards and Good practice Guide. Arrangements for Independent legal 
advice for IRO’s have been agreed with a reciprocal arrangement between Bridgend and Neath Port Talbot legal 
departments. The IRO’s have accessed this support on a number of occasions. However, the standards have introduced 
a new process to completing Looked After Children reviews which includes the involvement of the Team Managers.  This 
is achieved when the IRO sends the Team Manager the meeting recommendations within 5 days of completing the Review 
and that Team Manager has 5 days to respond to these recommendations. This is now embedded and working well within 
the service quickly identifying  any area of disagreement and enabling these issues to be resolved at the earliest stage. 
IROs are holding mid-point meetings with the allocated Social Worker and this is also supporting the identification of drift 
early. 

Consultation with children and young people needs to be improved to ensure their voice is being heard. Whilst the IRO 
have worked to improve the consultation document for children and young people, challenges remain in encouraging them 
to complete the document. The IRO service is to ensure this is a priority to develop creative ways of engaging and 
encouraging participation of all children and young people. The development of an App may well improve consultation and 
participation. IRO’s routinely check that children and young people know about advocacy and how it can support them in 
having a real say in decisions affecting their lives. Our rates of referrals to the TGP Advocacy Service are very pleasing.

The IRO service has a direct relationship with the Children and Family Court Advisory Support Service (CAFCASS) and 
can, if required, refer matters of concern or report directly to CAFCASS where deficits in care planning for care experienced 
young people cannot be resolved locally but are sufficiently significant as to impact on the outcomes for children and young 

P
age 83



22

people. To date, the IRO service has had no cause to refer to CAFCASS but liaises with them regularly on individual cases 
within the public law arena.  IROs in Bridgend work to a standard that has improved liaison between the CAFCASS 
children’s guardians and Safeguarding Social Workers within family proceedings. As a result IROs are alerted more quickly 
to issues arising in the court process and can liaise at an earlier stage where disputes arise with the Local Authority. This 
relationship provides Guardians Ad Litem with the means to communicate issues arising directly with the IRO that are 
relevant to the on‐going development and monitoring of a care plan, either during proceedings or following an order being 
granted. 

The IRO Team meet with CAFCASS on a quarterly basis to discuss practice, themes and good practice examples.

The IRO Service has also been involved in rolling out training across the directorate and Education by facilitating the 
Working Together programme and by attending Team Meetings to support practitioners in the writing of child protection 
conference reports.

Service Priorities

 To increase the contact between the IRO with children and young people. 
 To work alongside safeguarding colleagues to achieve permanency for all children and reduce the numbers of care 

experienced children within a safe and appropriate plan.
 The development of child consultation and participation through a more accessible medium.
 To work alongside Safeguarding Teams and Social Care Development Workforce Team (SCDWP) to improve 

practice around Looked After Children Reviews and the Care Planning Process.
 To ensure appropriate care plans are progressing in a timely manner to prevent and avoid drift in children’s cases. 
 To continue to focus on increasing participation of children and young people at Looked After Children Reviews. 
 To ensure every care experienced child and young person has a stand-alone and in date Care Plan.

P
age 84



23

 To collate thematic practice issues identified from the QA’s and use these to develop learning themes and improve 
practice

 IROs will continue to promote advocacy services and the active offer to children and young people and make these 
referrals where consent has been given to support the child/young person’s voice.

Appendix 2 ACTION PLAN

Please see below service priorities Action Plan

Independent Reviewing Service Action Plan 2020/2021

IRO Service

Owner Due 
date

Recommendation Action Evidence Update Last 
RAG

RAG

B Completed

R A problem needs serious attention and 
action now

A Issues are being managed and if 
addressed should not affect delivery

G On track, in progress, any minor risks/ 
issues being managed

NYS Not Yet Started

P
age 85



24

 1 IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To increase the 
contact between the 
IRO with children 
and young people. 

IRO Service 
Manager will 
continue to be 
involved in the 
progress of the 
MUSE App.

Each IRO will 
ensure they give 
the child/YP the 
opportunity to 
meet with them to 
discuss their LAC 
review or CP 
Conference.

IRO Service 
Manager will 
attend all 
consultation 
meetings in 
relation to the 
development of 
this APP.

Data collection of 
consultation rates 
will be included in 
the 6 monthly 
IRO Report.

Some progress is being 
noted during this Covid 
pandemic as young people 
appear to prefer 
consultation over the 
phone or virtually using 
Skype or MS Teams.

Low rates of consultation 
documents. Service 
Manager has liaised with 
the Fostering Team to ask 
Foster Carers to 
encourage the children in 
their care to complete the 
consultation form.

 

N/A Amber

2. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To work alongside 
safeguarding 
colleagues to 
achieve permanency 
for all children and 
reduce the numbers 
of care experienced 
children within a safe 
and appropriate 
plan.

IROs to ensure at 
the 2nd LAC 
Review the plan 
for the child is 
clear. If the plan 
isn’t clear, the IRO 
will monitor and 
track the case and 
inform the 
appropriate 
Safeguarding 
Team Manager.

IROs to ensure 
they consider all 

IRO Service 
Manager to 
attend the LAC 
reduction 
Strategy Meeting 
held on a bi-
monthly basis.

During 
Supervision with 
IROs the IRO 
Service Manager 
will discuss 
alternative orders 
and options of 
care and add 
these identified 

This process is currently 
working well. IRO Service 
Manager has identified a 
number of cases where 
alternative care options 
could be considered 
resulting in the child no 
longer being Looked After.

N/A Green

P
age 86



25

appropriate 
options for care 
experienced 
children such as 
SGOs.

cases to the 
discussions at the 
LAC Reduction 
strategy Meeting. 

3. IRO Service  
Manager

Nov 
2020

The development of 
child and young 
person consultation 
and participation 
through a more 
accessible medium.

IRO Service 
Manager will 
continue to be 
involved in the 
progress of the 
MUSE App.

Each IRO will 
ensure they give 
the child/YP the 
opportunity to 
meet with them to 
discuss their LAC 
review or CP 
Conference.

IRO Service  
Manager will 
attend all 
consultation 
meetings in 
relation to the 
development of 
this APP.

Data collection of 
consultation rates 
will be included in 
the 6 monthly 
IRO Report.

This has been on-hold due 
to Covid 19.

N/A NYS

4. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To work alongside 
Safeguarding Teams 
and SCDWP to 
improve practice 
around care 
experienced children 
and their Looked 
After Children 
Reviews and the 

IROs will ensure 
they complete the 
IRO Quality 
Assurance 
document 
following every 
LAC Review. This 
will automatically 
be sent to the 
Safeguarding 

The rates of 
completed QA 
forms will 
increase in the 
next year and the 
data will be 
included in the 
IRO 6 month 
report.
IRO Service 
Manager will 

IRO Service Manager 
continues to raise cases of 
concern at the weekly 
Team Managers meeting.

IRO Service Manager 
continues to present 
training alongside the 
training department and is 
facilitating introductory 

N/A Amber

P
age 87



26

Care Planning 
Process.

Team Manager for 
their scrutiny.

Should the IRO 
identify concerning 
practice, they will 
raise this with the 
IRO Service 
Manager and the 
Safeguarding 
Team Manager. 
They will track the 
progress to a 
resolution and 
initiate the IRO 
Protocol where 
necessary. 

IRO Service 
Manager will 
facilitate training 
alongside the 
Training 
Department to 
support and 
improve practice.

IRO Service 
Manager will 
facilitate induction 
sessions to new 
starters and newly 

attend all IRO 
protocol Meetings 
to support the 
IROs and 
facilitate 
resolution.

 

sessions to new starters 
and newly qualified staff.

P
age 88



27

qualified Social 
Workers to support 
their professional 
development. 

5. IRO Service  
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To ensure 
appropriate care 
plans are 
progressing in a 
timely manner to 
prevent and avoid 
drift in children’s 
cases. 

At every LAC 
Review the IRO 
will check the child 
has a Care Plan 
that is up to date 
and meets the 
child’s needs. The 
IRO will 
recommend at 
each LAC Review 
that the Care Plan 
is updated to 
reflect the changes 
agreed at the 
current LAC 
Review.

The IRO will track 
each child and 
ensure their Care 
Plan has been 
updated. The IRO 
will hold mid-point 
meetings to 
prevent drift and 

The rates of IRO 
Quality 
Assurance forms 
being completed 
is increasing and 
this will continue 
moving forward.

IROs are holding 
mid-point 
meetings for each 
child who is 
Looked After 
however there 
are times the 
child’s SW does 
not respond. In 
these cases the 
IRO will raise this 
with their Service 
Manager and the 
safeguarding 
Team Manager.

Each IRO is currently 
compiling lists of all the 
children who have out of 
date Care Plans and is 
making the Safeguarding 
Team Manager and Social 
Worker aware and is 
tracking the case to ensure 
the Care Plan is 
completed.

IRO Service Manager 
ensures when attending 
the LAC Reduction 
Strategy meeting and 
monthly Performance 
meeting that for any child 
who is discussed, the date 
of their Care Plan is 
checked to ensure it is up 
to date and where not it is 
flagged with the 
Safeguarding Team 
Manager.   

N/A Amber

P
age 89



28

take action where 
drift is identified. 

Each IRO will 
complete the IRO 
Quality Assurance 
form following 
each LAC review 
as this informs the 
SW and their 
Team Manager of 
any out of date 
Care Plans.

6. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To continue to focus 
on increasing 
consultation and 
participation of 
children and young 
people at Looked 
After Children 
Reviews. 

IROs to ensure 
they offer to 
consult with each 
LAC child as 
appropriate for 
their age and level 
of understanding 
and to use a 
means of 
communication 
that the child 
choses. This 
includes face to 
face meeting, 
phone, Skype and 
MS Teams.

The IRO Quality 
Assurance form 
captures the 
consultation data 
and this will be 
included in IRO 6 
month report.

IRO Service  
Manager will 
during 
Supervision 
sessions discuss 
the importance of 
consultation and 
ensure it remains 
a priority for each 
IRO.

Since Covid restrictions 
have been in place IROs 
have found many young 
people prefer to be 
consulted via virtual means 
such as Skype.

IROs report many young 
people have attended their 
LAC reviews while in the 
lock down period as they 
have had greater 
availability to attend.

IRO Service Manager has 
added Consultation as a 
Supervision agenda item 
to ensure it is discussed in 
Supervision sessions with 
each IRO.

N/A Amber

P
age 90



29

7. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

To ensure every 
care experienced 
child and young 
person has a stand-
alone and in date 
Care Plan.

At every LAC 
Review the IRO 
will check the child 
has a Care Plan 
that is up to date 
and meets the 
child’s needs. The 
IRO will 
recommend at 
each LAC Review 
that the Care Plan 
is updated to 
reflect the changes 
agreed at the 
current LAC 
Review.

The IRO will track 
each child and 
ensure their Care 
Plan has been 
updated. The IRO 
will hold mid-point 
meetings to 
prevent drift and 
take action where 
drift is identified. 

Each IRO will 
complete the IRO 
Quality Assurance 

The rates of IRO 
Quality 
Assurance forms 
being completed 
is increasing and 
this will continue 
moving forward.

IROs are holding 
mid-point 
meetings for each 
child who is 
Looked After 
however there 
are times the 
child’s SW does 
not respond. In 
these cases the 
IRO will raise this 
with their Team 
Manager and the 
safeguarding 
Team Manager.

Each IRO is currently 
compiling lists of all the 
children who have out of 
date Care Plans and is 
making the Safeguarding 
Team Manager and Social 
Worker aware and is 
tracking the case to ensure 
the Care Plan is 
completed.

IRO Service Manager 
ensures when attending 
the LAC Reduction 
Strategy meeting and 
monthly Performance 
meeting that for any child 
who is discussed, the date 
of their Care Plan is 
checked to ensure it is up 
to date and where not that 
this is flagged with the 
Safeguarding Team 
Manager.   

N/A Amber

P
age 91



30

form following 
each LAC review 
as this informs the 
SW and their 
Team Manager of 
any out of date 
Care Plans.

8. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO

Nov 
2020

To collate thematic 
practice issues 
identified from the 
QA’s and use these 
to develop learning 
themes and improve 
practice.

The data will be 
scrutinised for the 
6 monthly IRO 
Report.  

Any practice 
themes identified 
will be provided 
to the Training 
Department and 
Team Managers 
at the weekly 
Team Meeting.

If required the 
IRO Service 
Manager will be 
available to 
support the 
Training Team in 
facilitating 
training sessions 
to address these 
deficits.

The Quality Assurance 
forms are being used 
currently to identify out of 
date Care Plans as a 
theme and this is being 
addressed by the IROs 
with the Social Workers 
and their Team Managers.

N/A NYS

9. IRO Service 
Manager and 
each IRO.

Nov 
2020

IROs will continue to 
make children and 
young people aware 
of the advocacy 
service.

This is currently 
monitored via the 
IRO Quality 
Assurance form 
and will be 
scrutinised for the 

The referral 
numbers to Tros 
Gynnal from 
Bridgend are the 
highest in the 
Western Bay 
area.

BCBC rates of referrals to 
advocacy support are 
pleasing currently and 
have increased in the last 
year.

N/A Green

P
age 92



31

IRO 6 month 
report.

IROs will ensure 
when consulting 
with young people 
they ask if they 
would like the 
support of the 
Advocacy Service.

IRO Service 
Manager will liaise 
with the Group 
Manager for Case 
Management and 
Transition 
periodically to 
check the referral 
rates have not 
decreased.

IROs report good 
evidence of 
advocacy 
discussions and 
offers being 
made between 
Social Workers 
and Children.

Author: Raeanna Grainger
Independent Reviewing Service Manager

07.01.21

P
age 93



32

P
age 94



33

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Diweddariad Cynllun Gwella Cyfiawnder Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr
	Appendix 1 PIAP and NS SA Action Plan 6.10.20
	Appendix 2 Performance Framework 14.1020
	Appendix 3 TOR Sep 19
	Communications Plan YJS v 0.2

	5 Adroddiad y Gwasanaeth Adolygu Annibynnol (GAA)
	4.2.21. - Appendix A to IRO Report 2019-2020.


